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Overview of the Company
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Harbin Power Equipment Company Limited (the “Company”) was
formed through the restructuring of Harbin Electric Corporation
(original Harbin Power Plant Equipment Group Corporation ), which
is the oldest large-scale power plant equipment manufacturer in
the People’'s Republic of China (the “PRC") and its three affiliates:
Harbin Electrical Machinery Works, Harbin Boiler Works and Harbin
Turbine Works (“the three major power factories”). These three
major power factories were established in the 1950s. The Company
was established in Harbin, PRC on 6th October, 1994. The dealings
in the shares of the Company commenced on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “HKSE") on 16th December, 1994.

As at 31st December, 2008, the share capital of the Company
comprised of 1,376,806,000 shares, of which 675,571,000 shares
were circulated on the HKSE as H shares.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are the largest
manufacturer of power plant equipment in the PRC. The Group's

principal activities include:

e Thermal power equipment: boilers, steam turbines and steam
turbine generators with single unit capacity up to 1,000 MW
heavy-duty gas turbine and combined cycle units, the largest
manufacturing base for clean coal combustion equipment in the
PRC: CFB, PFBC, etc.

e Hydro power equipment: hydro power sets with single unit
capacity up to 700 MW class

e Nuclear power main equipment: nuclear island and conventional

island equipment for nuclear power plants

e (QOther products: ancillary equipment, industrial boilers, industrial
steam turbines, control devices, AC/DC motors, valves for
power stations, pressure vessels and axial compressor, etc.

e Turn-key construction of power station projects

e Contract supply of complete sets of thermal and hydro power

equipment
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Overview of the Company (continued)
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e |mport and export of power equipment

e FEngineering technology R&D of complete set of power

equipment
e System R&D of complete set of power equipment
e R&D of power equipment and its ancillary equipment
e Technology transfer, technical consultation and services
e Environmental protection engineering services
The Group possesses a comprehensive range of advanced
production and research facilities. Its capabilities in research and
development, product manufacturing and power station construction
have been in the forefront of the power plant equipment

manufacturing industry in the PRC.

The Group is located in Harbin, PRC, also known as the “City of the

Power”.




NIRRT §)

Overview of the Company (continued)

ATIRBREEET CORPORATE STRUCTURE AND MAIN BUSINESS LINE
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(MAEREREL) Holders of H Shares

Harbin Electric Corporation (“HE")

50.93% 49.07%

REEDIREROGERATA(ELQE])

Harbin Power Equipment Company Limited (the “Company”)

90.94% 62.54% 87.37% 100% 60% 100% 100% 100%
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(MEERRD) (Damgasl) (TE#HAFE]) (fIF”TD Harbin Power BRAA EERQA HE Harbin
Harbin Boiler  Harbin Turbine Harbin Harbin Power Equipment Harbin Harbin Electric ~ Power Plant
Company Company Electrical Engineering National Power Plant Machinery  Valve Company
Limited Limited Machinery Company Engineering Equipment AC-DC Motor Limited
("Boiler (“Turbine Company Limited Research Corporation Limited Duty
Company”) Company”) Limited ("Engineering Centre Co., Ltd (QHD) Heavy Company
(“Electrical Company”) Equipment
Machinery Co., Ltd

Company”)



MBERE
Financial Highlights
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Financial Highlights (continued)

AEBMAF 2 ¥E BERBERIIAT : : The summary of results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five years are as follows:

BE+-A=+—-HLEE

Unit Year ended 31st December,

=-iva 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
- AR For 29,903,544 27,648,584 29,098,016 18,464,106 10,215,670
Turnover Rmb’000
FREE BT A AE#For 1,573,247 2,115,820 1,543,573 696,125 168,963
Profit before tax Rmb’'000
A FFE AR F T 1,041,837 1,527,979 1,024,581 464,990 117,572
Net profit for the year Rmb’000
BERE AR For 48,966,625 42,090,490 37,444,548 36,448,887 31,015,199
Total assets Rmb’000
BERE AR For 39,398,700 33,678,080 31,665,150 31,924,207 27,361,591
Total liabilities Rmb’000
DY RS ANE®TFr 1,431,845 1,199,417 947,931 640,052 540,546
Minority interests Rmb’000
AR R = AR ETFor 8,136,080 7,212,993 4,831,467 3,884,628 3,113,062
Shareholders’ fund Rmb’'000
HRFEE AR 5.91 5.24 3.79 3.05 2.62
Net assets per share Rmb
SRR EF AR 0.757 1.123 0.804 0.389 0.099

Earnings per share Rmb
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Financial Highlights (continued)

FEER . PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

ARAREBIERIREERARIWIRHESEERE The Company acts as an investment holding company and provides

RIETFEMBAR - :  corporate management services to its subsidiaries.

BZ2008F12A31ALEE EZE2007F12A31HIEFE

Year ended 31st December, 2008 Year ended 31st December, 2007
REEEMDBEEBEREERNBE M =E 3 EEANH = BRI
Turnover and contribution to operating Turnover Contribution to Turnover Contribution to
profit by major product categories operating operating
profit profit
ARMF T ABRMTFT AEBFT AEBFr
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
NEF R 20,493,133 3,042,982 20,463,511 3,417,779

Main thermal power equipment

IKEEREE 2,863,250 658,649 2,172,504 305,648
Main hydro power equipment

B TI2ARTS 3,446,168 (346,162) 2,090,704 44,892

Engineering services for power stations

B R ER A 1,161,006 299,577 1,124,500 317,754
Power equipment accessories and parts

22 B B A S LA E m B AR 7S 1,939,987 352,034 1,797,365 241,638
A.C./D.C. motors and other products

and services

29,903,544 4,007,080 27,648,584 4,327,711
H At U 340,580 355,042
Profit from other activities
RO FEERZER 2,774,413 2,604,382
Expenses not allocated to major products
Tt A A 1,573,247 2,115,820

Profit before tax
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Chairman’s Statement

Dear shareholders,

| am pleased to present the Company's annual report for the year
ended 31st December, 2008 to all shareholders on behalf of the
board of directors of Harbin Power Equipment Company Limited and
wish to take this opportunity to express my sincerest appreciation

to the support of all shareholders.

2008 was an exceptional year for the Company. Impacted by
the international financial crisis, the growth of China’s economy
slowed down and the power demand was reduced as witnessed
by a significant fall in the year-on-year growth rates for both
annual electricity output and consumption. In face of the fierce
competition in the power equipment market, the Company recorded
declining results which were impacted by its seriously disturbed
production and operation and the increasing difficulties in projects
implementation. Fortunately, the PRC government has implemented
prompt and effective macro-economic austerity measures to secure
a relatively fast economic development. In view of the changes
in the operating environment, the Company’'s management has
adjusted the operating strategies and endeavored to overcome
the hurdles. Encouraging results for the efforts made have been
achieved while a growth in both the turnover and production volume
was recorded, which have laid a solid foundation for the sustainable

development of the Company.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
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Newly signed contracts for the year 2008 amounted to Rmb57.354
billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 11.67%. Major
breakthroughs have also been achieved in the nuclear power market
development. By securing orders for steam generators for four
kinds of reactors, namely Generation I+, AP1000, C2 project and
high temperature gas cooled reactors, and entering into several
manufacturing contracts for Generation Il+ main pump generators,
we have become the main equipment supplier for AP1000
nuclear power and conventional islands and have established our
leading status in the AP1000 nuclear power market. We have also
maintained our market leading position in 300MW and 600MW
thermal power generators and large-scale hydropower products.
While our position in the traditional international markets was
further consolidated, we have also expanded into emerging markets

such as Russia.

Increased investment in R&D has also brought about significant
results. During the year, a total of Rmb780 million was invested in
R&D, with 481 projects launched and 220 projects completed, and
the Company has acquired various national, provincial and municipal
awards for the scientific achievements in 14 projects. In addition,
the Company has expedited its pace in proprietary innovation and
new products were developed. Newly imported technologies were
smoothly incorporated and assimilated. The Company, reconfirmed
as a hi-tech enterprise, will continue to enjoy a preferential

enterprise income tax rate of 15%.

We have set a new record by producing power generation
equipment with capacity reaching 35,100MW. The product delivery
schedule for the Company in 2008 was tight and the outbreak of
the financial crisis made it more difficult for us to carry out our
production and projects. In view of this, the Company has adjusted
its production plan in a timely manner with reference to the
requirements of the customers, the construction progress of power
stations, our inventory of materials and technical preparation in
order to satisfy the demand of the customers. With all the possible
effective measures adopted, we have successfully mitigated the
adverse impact of the surging raw material prices and supply

shortage, and have achieved our annual production target.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
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Our achievements in 2008 were the culmination of the wisdom and
efforts of our entire staff as well as the trust and support of all the
shareholders. Supported by our shareholders, we are determined,
with our competitive drive and unswerving confidence, to overcome
the difficulties ahead and excel ourselves for achieving sustainable

development of the Company.

In 2009, both the China's economy and the Company will face
unprecedented challenges brought by the worsening of the financial
crisis. First of all, the demand in the power generation equipment
market will further reduce and increasingly severe competition
will prevail in the market. Secondly, the financial crisis will create
a higher extent of uncertainties on project implementation and
difficulties in production planning. Thirdly, enterprises will be
presented with considerable demand for the capacity of innovation
since the focus of competition will be shifted to the development of
producing efficient and environmental-friendly products that apply

alternative energies.

Challenges bring opportunities while returns come from risks.
Notwithstanding the current economic condition and changes in
market demand, we will pursue new development opportunities
and adjust our operating strategy, improve our management,
optimize our product mix and strengthen our core competitive
edges in a painstaking effort to become the best power equipment
manufacturer in China and the leading enterprise in the industry in

the world.

With resolute determination, we will combat all adversities and

strive for better results for all shareholders.

Chairman
Gong Jing-kun
Harbin, the PRC, 24th April, 2009
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)
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MACRO-ECONOMIC AND INDUSTRY DEVELOPMENT

The year of 2008 was an uncommon year in the history of the
development of China. Albeit China’s economic development was
hit by the serious natural disasters such as the snowstorm in
Southern China and the earthquake in Wenchuan, Sichuan and the
slowdown of the global economy triggered by the global financial
crisis, China was capable of achieving an outstanding performance
underscored by the 9% growth in GDP with the proactive and yet
prudent measures adopted by the central government. Throughout
the year, in particular the first half of the year, the power generation
equipment market prospered with its focus shifted to efficient and

environmental friendly alternative energies.

Meanwhile, the Company's profitability and impetus of growth
were adversely affected by the significant appreciation of Renmibi
in the first half of the year and the oversupply of power in most
of the regions as at the end of the year due to the gradual fall
in monthly power consumption throughout the country ever
since stepping into the second half of the year, and were further
impacted by the slowdown in the construction of power plants,
delay in the commencement of certain projects and the shortage in
and the soaring prices of some of the raw materials required by the

Company'’s products.

In face of the drastic changes in the external environment, the
Company has managed to deliver satisfactory results through timely
adjustment to its focus of work while overcoming the emerging

challenges.
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NEW CONTRACT

The year of 2008 featured a flourishing market of power equipment
and the value of new-receiving contracts scaled a new height at
Rmb57.354 billion, among which the contract value for thermal
power equipment, hydro power equipment, engineering services,
nuclear power equipment and others reached Rmb31.786 billion
(net of internal transaction), Rmb8.244 billion, Rmb10.5 billion,
Rmb2.098 billion and Rmb4.726 billion (net of internal transaction)
respectively, representing 55.42%, 14.37%, 18.31%, 3.66% and
8.24% of the total contracted value respectively. As at the end of
the 2008, the Company had contracts on hand with a total value of
Rmb91.5 billion.

A significant milestone was marked for the development of the
nuclear market highlighted by the first contract for Generation I+
nuclear power steam equipment (N EZXEEE) with the
supply contract entered into for 3 sets of steam power generation
equipment for Generation |1+ CPR1000 under Yangjiang project (=
10 CPR1000 [5/ILIEH). The Company has also secured the supply
contract for 2 sets of steam power generation equipment for 2#
unit of the AP1000 Sanmen Nuclear Project in Zhejiang and the
TG supply contract for conventional island in the Haiyang Project
and has become an equipment supplier for AP1000 nuclear power
and conventional islands. The supply contract for 2 steam power
generators and turbine generator for HTGR reactor for the Huaneng
Shangdong Shidaowan (821U AEE) Project has allowed the
Company to emerge as an equipment supplier for the first domestic
HTGR reactor in the PRC. The Company has acquired manufacturing
contracts of steam power generators for 4 types of reactors,
including the steam generator unit for Chashma Nuclear Power
C2 Project. In addition, the Company was awarded the supply
contracts for a total of 6 pressure stabilizers (F2BkgS) for 1# to 4#
of the Generation Il+ CPR1000 of Yangjiang Project and 1# and
2# of Ningde Project. Besides, the Company has also entered into
contract of product supply and technologies transfer and product
subcontracting for the major reactor-cooling agent pump units
(REHE R ANEIZR4E) for Generation Il+ CPR1000 in Fuging and
Fangjiashan Project with CNNC, allowing the Company to acquire
the technology transfer contracts for “Generation II+" nuclear main
pump technology and the supply contract for 12 sets of main pump
and 14 sets of main pump generators. Such developments have
enabled the Company to take the lead in self-development and
manufacturing of major cooling agent pump sets for nuclear plants.



EEEmMES @

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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The Company has maintained its competitive edges in the traditional
products market. Among the projects tendered in 2008, the
Company has successfully won 48.39% and 30.16% of the tenders
for boiler and for gas turbines and power generators, respectively,
with respect to the 300MW thermal power projects, while 34.15%
and 36.59% of the tenders for boilers and for gas turbines and
power generators with respect to 600MW thermal power projects
were acquired by the Company, representing more than one third
of the market share. In the hydropower aspect, the Company has
secured the supply contracts for large-scale hydropower plants
such as Xiang Jiaba and Xiluodu, and this reinforced the Company’s
leading position in the large-scale hydropower market. The signing
of the contract with respect to 4 x 250MW large-scale pumped
storage units for Xiangshuijian has made the Company the first
domestic manufacturing enterprise which provides domestic large-

scale pumped storage units.

The Company has made significant achievement in the international
market and has entered into product supply and service contracts
to supply 2 x 600MW main equipment island to phase two of
SALAYA and 2 x 600MW main equipment island to £8l{= in India.
Meanwhile, the Company has also entered into contracts in relation
to a 1 x 150MW bio-energy power generator project in Thailand and
signed a supply contract with FFZ& X% 52 in Russia for 2 x 660MW
ultra super critical main equipment. Such contracts marked the
Company’s success in exploring the emerging markets, such as

Russia.

PRODUCTION AND SERVICES

The Company has set a new record for the quantity of products
produced. The total output for the year was up to 35,100.65MW,
representing an increase of 12.30% compared with the last year,
among which 67 units of utility boiler with a total capacity of
25,645MW, an increase of 2.64% over the last year; 81 steam
turbines for power plant with a total capacity of 30,111TMW, an
increase of 24.12% over the last year; 70 turbine generator units
with a total capacity of 29,367MW, an increase of 16.41% over the
last year; 43 units of hydro power turbo-generator units with a total
capacity of 5,733.656MW, a decrease of 4.92% over the last year;
and 3 units of gas turbines with a total capacity of 766.8MW, an

increase of 50% over the last year, were completed.




EEJE HHHL&E

o AT ()

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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In view of the drastic changes in the external environment and the
immense pressure of product delivery, the Company has undertaken
dynamic analysis over the contracts on hand and has made
timely adjustment to the plan with reference to the customers’
requirements, the construction progress of electricity plants and
the preparation with respect to materials and technologies. All
the measures undertaken aimed at overcoming the challenges
coming from the shortage in raw materials supply and promoting

customers’ satisfaction.

R&D AND INTRODUCTION OF TECHNOLOGIES

The Company has greatly enhanced its core competitiveness
by absorbing and incorporating the imported technologies and

extending its capacity in self-innovation.

Increased investment in R&D has also initiated new research
studies projects. In 2008, a total of Rmb780 million was invested in
R&D with 481 projects launched and 220 projects completed, and
the Company has acquired various national, provincial and municipal
awards for the scientific achievements in 14 projects, while 32

inventions have obtained national patents.

The awards included the First Prize of National Scientific
Improvement (BIRBHE#EH—%F4E) for the “Research, Production
and Application of Super Critical 600MW Thermal Power Unit” (i
Be SR 600MW A BHAAK E R AT 28 TF2 8 /), the Special Prize for
Technological Improvement in Engineering Industry (#4528
#E P #8155 58) and Special Prize for Heilongjiang Provincial Scientific
Development (BETIARIELFER) for “Research of Key
Technologies and Manufacturing of Equipment for Large-scale Air-
cooling Hydro Power Turbo-generator Units of the Three Gorges”
(ZIRE R 222/ 7K 2 B M AR B 52 BRI 70 M sR AR 8Y) and the First
Prize for Heilongjiang Provincial Scientific Development (B&ET4&
Rl #E 2 —%48) for “the Research and Production of 600,000kW
Super Critical Gas Turbines” (608 T FLAAFR S /T iR RY).
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The Company is determined to promote domestic production by
accelerating the pace of absorbing and incorporating the imported
technologies. The work with respect to the technology transfer
of AP1000 nuclear and conventional islands was commenced
and progressed smoothly. A domestic proportion of over 90%
was achieved for 600MW super critical generator units and
approximately 80% for 1,000MW ultra super critical generator units.
Work with respect to the importation of technologies for 300MW
pumped storage units proceeded smoothly and data conversion was

near completion.

PROFIT

In the year of 2008, net profit of the Group was Rmb1,041.84
million, a decrease of 31.82% compared to the last year; earnings
per share was Rmb0.76, a decrease of Rmb0.36 compared to the
corresponding period of last year; net asset as at the end of the
period was Rmb8,136.08 million, an increase of Rmb923.09 million
compared to the beginning of the year; net asset per share was
Rmb5.91, an increase of Rmb0.67 compared to the beginning of the

year.

During the period, the decline in the profit of the Group was
attributable to the increase in costs driven by the surge of raw
material prices in the first half of the year and the considerable loss
arising from the appreciation of Renminbi and the exchange loss for

the exported items recorded during the period.

DIVIDEND

A dividend of Rmb0.075 per share (appropriate tax included) for
the year of 2008 (2007: Rmb0.091 per share) was proposed by the
board of directors.
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TURNOVER

In 2008, the Group recorded a turnover of principal business
activities of Rmb29,903.54 million, an increase of 8.16% compared
to the last year. In particular, turnover of the thermal power main
equipment business was Rmb20,493.13 million, representing a
slight increase over the last year and accounted for 68.53% of the
turnover of the principal business activities. Turnover of hydropower
main equipment was Rmb2,863.25 million, an increase of 31.79%
over the last year, representing 9.58% of the turnover of the
principal business activities. Turnover of power plant engineering
services was Rmb3,446.17 million, an increase of 64.83% compared
to the last year, representing 11.52% of the turnover of the
principal business activities. Turnover of power plant accessories
and parts was Rmb1,161.01 million, an increase of 3.25% over
the last year, representing 3.88% of the turnover of the principal
business activities. Turnover of AC/DC motors and other products
and services was Rmb1,939.99 million, an increase of 7.94% over
the last year, representing 6.49% of the turnover of the principal

business activities.

During the period, the Group recorded a turnover of export of
Rmb2,814.98 million, representing an increase of Rmb657.9 million
over the last year and accounted for 9.41% of the turnover of the
principal business activities. The export was mainly to areas such as

Russia, Asia and Africa.

COST

During the year, the cost of the principal business activities of
the Group was Rmb25,896.46 million, an increase of 11.04% as
compared to the last year. The increase was attributable to the
increase of turnover of main business activities and prices of raw

materials.

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

During the period, the gross profit from the principal business
activities of the Group was Rmb4,007.08 million, a decrease of
7.41% as compared to the last year. The gross profit margin was
13.40%, a decrease of 2.25 percentage points over the last year.
The decrease in gross profit margin is mainly attributable to the rise

in raw material prices and the fluctuation in exchange rates.
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Among them the gross profit from thermal power main equipment
was Rmb3,042.98 million, a decrease of Rmb374.80 million
compared to the last year. The gross profit margin for thermal
power main equipment was 14.85%, a decrease of 1.85 percentage
points compared to the corresponding period last year. The gross
profit from hydropower main equipment was Rmb658.65 million,
an increase of Rmb353.00 million compared to the corresponding
period last year. The gross profit margin for hydropower power
main equipment was 23.00%, an increase of 8.93 percentage points
compared to the corresponding period last year. The gross profit
from power plant engineering services was Rmb-346.16 million,
a decrease of Rmb391.05million compared to the corresponding
period last year. The gross profit margin for engineering services
was —-10.04%, a decrease of 12.19 percentage points over the
corresponding period last year. The gross profit from power plant
accessories and parts was Rmb299.58 million, a decrease of
Rmb18.18 million compared to the corresponding period last year.
The gross profit margin for power plant accessories and parts was
25.80%, a decrease of 2.46 percentage points over the last year.
The gross profit from the AC/DC motors and other products and
services was Rmb352.03million, an increase of Rmb110.40 million
compared to the corresponding period last year. The gross profit
margin for the AC/DC motors and other products and services was
18.15%, an increase of 4.71 percentage points over the last year.

EXPENSES DURING THE PERIOD

The Group's expenses for operation activities during the year of
2008 amounted to Rmb425.28million, an increase of Rmb11.67
million compared to the corresponding period last year, of which the

main reasons were the increase in market development expenses.

Expenses for administration activities during the year of 2008
amounted to Rmb2,153.81 million, an increase of Rmb267.05
million or 14.15% compared to the corresponding period last year,
of which the main reason was the increase in asset impairment

provisions and exchange losses.

INTEREST EXPENSE

In 2008, the Group has incurred financial expenses of Rmb195.33
million, an increase of Rmb40.47 million compared to the
corresponding period last year, which was mainly attributable to the
increase in loan interests.




EIEfE AL B 5 AT ()
Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

ERRFERERERL

AEBrEERERAMTZEASCEIER=ERIR
BRES  REERMBITER - XEEZERK
TRIRELEETE B Mm% HE - BRFFRIENIN - B —
RAETSFRARSRIER BEBRERREE
BRALEBHTRARE - AR ERERNEER]
BRIEKEFRABEREN  AEELEEEEH
W EEBTBRABIEELECER -HEZ-ZT
ENF+ZA=+—8  AEERITIEREE
7 4405828 (ZEELFET_A=+—HA
476,3288 L) M RIEBERBEN KL SEmE
RITRBERBERERITERSHMER ° e - AR
—FREE 2B A87,0708 7T © L E LN
11,7328 7T ° AR —F1&EE 2 {850 /535,3511

i —

BT LhEVEADA7,4788 T °

FRRREERE

 E_ZEENF+_A=+—"8 AEER
THERKIEE 51,030,160 8 7T+ b & 13 in
68,0068 7T - HiN + REBLEXEBKIRERA
JFRE/3255,2608 T REEB 2R SR LIFRE
73439048 MEXEB HRERANFER
54,2448 T °

EESBRREHRER
(E_TEN\FTZA=1+—H FAEEEEL

{E/54,896,6638 7 © LLFH1E 687,614 T
#R16.34% o EF - mBIEE4S411,6308 7T
15 & E#{ER90.09%  JE & E485,0338

T HEERERNI.IND

FUNDING AND BORROWINGS

The Group has three major resources for operation and development
funding, namely shareholder’'s capital, trade receivable from
customers and bank borrowings. The Group arranges borrowings
for each specific project. Except for some special situations, loans
will be raised individually by the Group’s subsidiaries. However, the
advance approval from the parent company for capital investment
borrowings is required. As the number of orders and the trade
amount received in advance of the Group increased significantly
during the past two years, the Group had abundant working capital
and has thus repaid substantially all of the loans for working
capital. As at 31st December 2008, the total sum of the Group's
bank borrowings was Rmb4,405.82 million (31st December 2007:
Rmb4,763.28 million). The Group’s bank borrowings were loans
from various commercial banks and the State’s policy banks
with interest rates stipulated by the state. Among the Group's
borrowings, the amount due within one year was Rmb870.70
million, an increase of Rmb117.32 million compared to the
beginning of the year. The amount of the Group's borrowings due
after one year was Rmb3,535.11 million, a decrease of Rmb474.78

million compared to the beginning of the year.

DEPOSITS AND CASH FLOW

As at 31st December, 2008, bank deposits and cash of the Group
amounted to Rmb10,301.60 million, an increase of Rmb680.06
million over the beginning of the year. During the period, net
cash inflow from operating activities amounted to Rmb2,552.60
million. Net cash outflow from investment activities amounted to
Rmb3,439.04 million and net cash inflow from financing activities
was Rmb542.44 million.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND CHANGES THEREOF

As at 31st December, 2008, total assets of the Group amounted
to Rmb48,966.63 million, an increase of Rmb6,876.14 million (or
16.34%) compared to the beginning of the year, among which total
current assets were Rmb44,116.30 million, representing 90.09%
of the total assets, and total non-current assets were Rmb4,850.33

million, representing 9.91% of the total assets.
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LIABILITIES

As at 31st December, 2008, the Group's total liabilities amounted
to Rmb39,398.70 million, an increase of Rmb5,720.62 million
compared to the beginning of the year, among which total current
liabilities were Rmb30,497.36 million, representing 77.41% of the
total liabilities, and total non-current liabilities were Rmb8,901.34
million, representing 22.59% of the total liabilities. As at 31st
December, 2008, the assets to liabilities ratio of the Group was
80.46%.

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

As at 31st December, 2008, the total shareholders’ equity of
the Company amounted to Rmb8,136.08 million, an increase of
Rmb923.09 million compared to the beginning of the year; the net
asset per share was Rmb5.91. During the period, the net asset

return rate of the Group was 13.58%.

GEARING RATIO

As at 31st December, 2008, gearing ratio of the Group (non-current
liabilities over total shareholders’ equity) was 1.09:1 as compared to

that of 0.80:1 at the beginning of the year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND PLEDGE OF ASSET

As at 31st December, 2008, the Group pledged its assets in an

amount of Rmb484.26 million to secure loans for liquidity.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES AND MAJOR INVESTMENTS

In the year 2008, the Group has invested a total capital expenditure
of Rmb1.015 billion in infrastructure constructions and technological

upgrades. The major items were as follows:

The planned investment for the construction of production base for
main equipment for nuclear island was Rmb602 million, of which
Rmb252 million has been utilized in 2008. The construction of a
heavy-duty nuclear power equipment plant was completed and the

installation of the main equipment was proceeding smoothly.
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Rmb285 million and Rmb100 million were allocated for the
manufacture and construction of nuclear power main pump
generators and nuclear power plant valves, in which Rmb156
million and Rmb68 million have been utilized in 2008 respectively.
The approval procedures of the plans for the construction site
and construction work were completed. Moreover, two clusters
of factories for main pump generators and nuclear power plant
valves were cold-sealed while lifting and transportation equipment
has been delivered to the factories by batches and installed
subsequently.

Rmb182 million was planned to be invested in the domestic
production project for large-scale pumped storage unit, in which
Rmb63 million has been utilized in 2008. The installation and trial
operation of the main equipment will be completed by the end of
the year.

A total of Rmb248 million was allocated for the technological
improvement projects for large-scale gas turbine generator units, in
which Rmb44 million has been utilized in 2008. The project was in
well progress.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE RATES AND
RELATED HEDGES

The Group has certain amount of deposits that are denominated in
foreign currencies. As at 31st December, 2008, the amount of the
Group’s deposits in foreign currencies amounted to RMB629.84
million. Export and foreign currencies settled businesses expose the
Group to exchange risk.

USE OF FUND-RAISING PROCEEDS

In the year 2008, the Group has utilized a total of Rmb588 million
of its fund-raising proceeds mainly for the Workshop Base
Construction Project in relation to main equipment for nuclear
islands, technological upgrade of nuclear power plant valves and
nuclear power main pump generators.

As at 31st December, 2008, the Group has utilized a total of
Rmb2.383 billion of its H share listing proceeds, while the remaining
balance of the listing proceeds of Rmb247 million was deposited
with banks and will be used in the second stage of the Workshop
Base Construction Project and other technological upgrade projects.
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STAFF AND REMUNERATION

As at 31st December, 2008, the Group had a workforce of 18,264
employees and the total remuneration amounted to Rmb1.130
billion. In order to promote the overall caliber of its staff so as to
build a solid foundation for a steady development of the Company,
the Group has put additional effort in staff training and adopted
various training approaches emphasizing on-the-job training and
targeting at senior management personnel while a number of

training courses for academic qualifications were also provided.

PROSPECT

The year 2009 will be a critical year for the economic development
of China and excessive supply of electricity will be seen. The newly
increased installed capacity of power equipment is expected to be
70 million kilowatt, representing a decrease of 23% as compared to
the last year. Market competition will be more intense. Meanwhile,
due to the delay in acceptance of products by some customers, the
Group expects that the production capacity of its major products
in 2009 will also decrease as compared to the last year, which
will pose significant pressure on its annual operating results. The
shortage in supply of certain specific raw materials will also bring

extra burden to the production division.

Although the global economy is in a slump and China’s economy
also encounters many problems, hardship is only temporary
and bright future lies ahead. As China is one of the countries in
the world which enjoys the fastest development, we have full
confidence that China will maintain a sustainable and healthy
economic development while the Company will also achieve a

steady growth.

China will accelerate its pace in the restructuring of the electric
power industry in 2009. The Chinese government will construct
large-scale coal-fired electricity plants, continue to implement the
policy of” replacing small units with larger units” ([ _EXEE/]N]) in
the electric power industry, develop heat and power co-generation,
promote the development of nuclear power and extend the
coverage of power grids. It will also actively develop renewable and
new energies, encourage the development and utilization of hydro
power, advocate large-scale development of wind power, boost
the development and utilization of solar energy, and promote the

development and utilization of biomass energy.
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We will make relentless efforts to transform crisis to momentum.
We will seek growth opportunities during the crisis, focus on good
management, improve our internal capacity, accelerate our pace in
optimizing the product structures, spare no effort in enhancing core
competitiveness and endeavor to maintain steady growth.

The Company will focus on accomplishing the following tasks in
2009:

1. Optimize production operation and project management to
deliver full performance of contracts

In the face of the uncertainties prevailed in the current economic
environment, we will, for the purpose of satisfying the demand
of the customers and taking into account of the present and
long-term benefits, endeavour to optimize the production
schedule for the contracts on hand while adopting preemptive
measures and promoting scientific and rational management.
We will also strengthen our risk management by taking effective
measures to timely recover the receivables. Meanwhile, we
will also further our work in improving our relationship with the
suppliers of raw materials while studying measures for dealing
with the challenges arising from the soaring raw material prices
and reducing the pressure of shortage in raw materials supply.

We will better our management over assets and inventory
to reduce the amount of restricted capital through lowering
the level of inventory, promoting turnover rate and exercising
stringent cost control with the target of realizing the potential
benefits of inventory management.

2. Scientific analysis of market trend and expand marketing effort

The market in 2009 will be full of uncertainties and further
fluctuations are expected. The Company, in response to such
an environment, will adopt flexible marketing strategy and will
commit itself to exploring the domestic and overseas markets.
Our targets for market development in 2009 are: to secure an
one-third or above market share for generator units with the
capacity of 300 MW and above, striving for a breakthrough in
the development of the large-scale thermal power generator
units market, enlarging our market share for nuclear products,
expanding the markets for modification services for accessories,
deNox products, valves, gas boilers (R{E/E), parts and obsolete
generator units. We are determined to enlarge our market share
in Asia and Africa while striving to mark a new milestone for the
development of the markets in Russia and the Americas.
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In terms of the domestic market, we attempt to avoid a
significant fall in the number of contracts secured and minimize
the unfavourable impact caused by market, increasing its market
share in the large-scale thermal power generators units market,
changes by upholding its position in the traditional market,
exploring the nuclear power market and maintaining our cutting
edges in the hydro power market. Meanwhile, we will also take
the initiative in developing new markets, such as IGCC, wind
power and desalination and getting well prepared for tender by
following closely the market development of gas turbines and

environmental friendly products.

Promote self-innovation and commit to scientific R&D

Guided by market trend and national policies, we will boost
our in-house innovation capability in the field of new product
development, and make improvement in our technology
development functions, in order to continually strengthen our

core competitiveness.

The assimilation and incorporation of newly introduced
technologies, such as the techniques in relation to the
equipment for 1,000MW nuclear power and conventional
islands, will be accelerated. We will further our understanding
of the techniques in relation to 300MW CFB boilers and 600MW
super critical boilers, assimilate, refine and realize domestic
application thereof, and continue to study the possible usages
of 600MW ultra super critical steam turbine. We also aim at
completing the comprehensive assimilation and absorption of
ALSTOM's large-scale pumped storage technology.

In addition, we will put more effort to develop new products by
accelerating the progress of our R&D projects. An estimated
Rmb1,614 million of R&D investment will be made in 2009 to
support our R&D projects. Our goal is to bolster our in-house
innovation capability to develop new products at a higher speed

so as to adapt to the changes in market demand.
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4. Capitalize on the development of the nuclear power industry

Our marketing effort in the nuclear power products market will
be stepped up in order to acquire more orders of Generation |l+
CPR1000 and AP1000 nuclear power steam equipment. We aim
at reinforcing our competitive strength in terms of products for
AP1000 nuclear power and conventional islands and endeavor to
achieve higher sales of products for Generation |l+ conventional
island. We will actively explore the market of nuclear power
valves and foster technological collaboration and marketing of
CRDM.

Serious effort will be taken to develop nuclear power
technologies. For example, the R&D projects that aim at
achieving significant breakthrough in nuclear power and
conventional islands technologies will be conducted according
to our stated schedule. We will speed up the construction of
our nuclear power product production base so as to provide the
necessary conditions to completely launch our nuclear power
products project. The second phase construction project of Z=
25 E# /7] has been completed and full-scale production
has been started, while further expansion projects thereof has
been commenced with the expansion project for CDRM filed for
approval. The fine-tuning and testing of the equipment of X E /it
27 has been finished while the construction of the laboratory
has been approved and has commenced. On the other hand,
P92 7] will complete the integration of its new processing
equipment as soon as practicable. We will also formulate further
construction and investment plans according to the development

plan in respect of the nuclear power industry.
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5. Advance our infrastructure investment to cater to the

Company’s development

In 2009, our investment in infrastructure and technological
upgrade will align with the development plan of the Company,
while existing projects will be subject to more stringent
supervision so as to speed up their progress and production.
The aggregate planned investment amounts to Rmb1.214 billion

and the major projects are as follows:

Nuclear power construction projects to be implemented:
Rmb179 million will be allocated for the construction of the
production facilities for main nuclear power island equipment
in Qinghuangdao, which is scheduled to be completed and
commence production in 2009; Rmb279 million will be allocated
for the projects of main nuclear power pump generator, which is
scheduled to be completed in 2009 except the generator testing
laboratory (B#E 5 U4); Rmb96 million and Rmb148 million will
be allocated for the project of MW generator production base
(BB EHEEREMIFE) and nuclear power turbine technical
upgrade project (Z&E TEmHERMTEREIEE) under our domestic
production of nuclear and conventional islands refinement
project ((ZEF#H SR ELTEIEE), respectively, which are both
schedule to be completed in 2009 except their generator testing
laboratories (B#E 2 Uf): and Rmb77 million will be allocated for
the project of turbine generator nuclear auxiliary equipment (%
IR AZ EEHIA B ) to be completed in 2009.

Other projects to be implemented: Rmb64 million will be
allocated for various projects such as the project of coal
engineering for boilers (&L T), which are planned to be
completed in 2009 except the coal engineering project (/&
{ETIEE); Rmb60 million will be allocated for the project of
hydro power generator laboratory (B#/KNERUATER) to
be completed in 2009; Rmb74 million will be allocated for
the project of power station valves (BUAFEFIEE), which is
scheduled to be completed and commence production in 2009;
and Rmb237 million will be allocated for the technical and

upgrade projects of various subsidiaries.

24th April, 2009, Harbin, the People’s Republic of China
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DIRECTORS
Executive directors

Mr. Gong Jing-kun, 51, senior engineer and with a master degree,
now chairman of HE and chairman of the Company. Mr. Gong
graduated from Shenyang Institute of Machinery and Electronics
in 1982 and joined in HE in the same year. Later on, he studied
in Shanghai Fudan University, majoring in economic management
and was conferred the master degree. Mr. Gong joined in HE
in 1982. Mr. Gong has been vice director of production division,
vice manager of production department, manager of hydropower
workshop in former Harbin Electric Machinery Works of the Group,
and general manager assistant and deputy general manager of the
Electric Machinery Company of the Group. Mr. Gong was appointed
as chairman of Archeng Relay Group Company and Archeng Relay
Company Limited in 1999, in August 2000, he was appointed as
vice chairman and general manager of HE and in September 2000,
Mr. Gong was appointed as vice chairman of the Company. In May
2006, he was appointed as chairman of HE and on 29th September,

chairman of the Company.

Mr. Zou Lei, 42, senior engineer and with a master degree, now
director and general manager of HE and director of the Company.
Mr. Zou graduated from Jiamusi Technical College in Heilongjiang
Province in July, 1988, majoring in mechanical design and
manufacture, and was conferred the bachelor degree. Then Mr. Zou
graduated from Harbin Institute of Technology and was conferred
the master of business administration. Mr. Zou was the dispatcher,
Party office secretary, league deputy secretary, secretary in
dispatching room of production division in Harbin Boiler Works,
Party branch secretary of pipe first branch factory, factory director
of heavy vessel workshop, factory director of Pingshan branch
factory, production director, deputy general manager, Chairman of
the Board, General manager and Party committee deputy secretary
in Harbin Boiler Company Limited. In December 2008, Mr. Zou was
elected as standing committee member of Party Committee director
and general manager. Mr. Zou has been executive director of the
Company from 11th February, 2009.
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Mr. Qu Da-zhuang, 52, researcher & senior engineer and with a
doctor degree, now managing director and general manager of the
Company and standing committee member of Party Committee of
HE. Mr. Qu graduated from Beijing University of Aeronautics and
Astronautic in July 1982. He studied at the department of applied
mathematics and mechanics of Harbin Institute of Technology from
September 1984 and graduated with a master degree, subsequently
obtained a doctor degree in astronautic engineering and mechanics
in September 1993. Mr. Qu has been deputy director and vice
superintendent of planning office of the research institute of Harbin
Electrical Machinery Plant; deputy general manager of the Harbin
Electrical Machinery Company Limited and superintendent of the
research institute. In August 2000, he had been deputy general
manager of HE. In 2002, he was deputy general manager of HE;
chairman of the Board and general manager of Harbin Turbine
Company Limited. He was appointed as general manager of this
Company on 8th September, 2006, and managing director on 29th
September, 2006.

Mr. Duan Hong-yi, 46, senior economist and master of business
administration, now deputy general manager of HE. Mr. Duan
graduated from Harbin Electrical Machinery College in 1982,
majoring in mechanics, and joined in HE in the same year. Mr. Duan
has been a comprehensive planner and vice manager of planning
department of former Boiler Works of the Group. He participated in
the reorganization of HE as shareholding Company and issuing and
listing of the Company's shares in 1994. He has been vice director
and director of planning and accounting department, vice chief
accountant of the Company and supervisor, deputy general manager
of the Turbine Company of the Group and vice chairman of Harbin
Power Technology & Trade Incorporation of the Group since 1995.
He was appointed as deputy general manager of HE in August
2000.
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Mr. Shang Zhong-fu, 48, senior engineer and master of business
administration, now executive director and deputy general manager
of the Company. Mr. Shang graduated from Harbin Institute of
Technology in 1982, majoring in steam turbine, and joined in HE
in the same year. He has been assistant section head and deputy
head of the Design Research Institute, vice chief economist and
vice chief engineer of former Turbine Works of the Group. In
October 1998, he was appointed as deputy general manager of the
Turbine Company of the Group and in November 1999, chairman
and general manager of the Turbine Company of the Group. In
September 2000 he was executive director of the Company and
in February 2002, appointed as deputy general manager of the
Company.

Mr. Wu Wei-zhang, 47, senior engineer and with a doctor degree,
now executive director of the Company and chairman and general
manager of the Electric Machinery Company of the Group. Mr.
Wu graduated from Qinghua University, majoring in hydropower
and was conferred master degree in 1988. Mr. Wu obtained a
doctor degree in thermal energy engineering in Qinghua University
and joined in HE in 1988. Mr. Wu was deputy director of turbine
department of Electrical Machinery Institute and deputy head of
Electrical Machinery Institute, deputy manager of hydropower
workshop, vice chief engineer and vice manager of product design
department of the Electric Machinery Company of the Group. Mr.
Wu has been the deputy general manager of the Electric Machinery
Company of the Group since 1999, in October 2000, was appointed
as chairman and general manager of the Electric Machinery
Company of the Group. He was appointed as executive director of

the Company in September 2000.
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Mr. Zhao Ke-fei, 53, senior economist and with a doctor degree,
now Secretary of Party Committee of the State-Owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Committee. Mr. Zhao graduated
from Northeast Heavy Machinery Institute in 1982, studied in
Management Institute of Harbin Institute of Technology in 1987
and got the master degree. Mr. Zhao obtained the doctor degree
in management in Harbin Engineering University in June, 2006. He
joined in HE in 1982, was the engineer, vice director of organization
department and vice director of turbine generator workshop in
former Harbin Electric Machinery Works of the Group. He began
to act as director of organization department of HE in 1992 and
standing vice secretary of the Communist Party Committee of the
Electric Machinery Company of the Group in 1994, managing deputy
general manager of the Electric Machinery Company of the Group
in December 1995. He was appointed as director of HE in August
1997, executive director and general manager of the Company
in October 1997. In November 1999, he was appointed as vice
chairman of HE and in January 2000 appointed as vice chairman of
the Company. Mr. Zhao Kefei has resigned as the Director of the
fifth session Board of the Company and vice chairman of the fifth

session Board for the reason of work transfer on 23th June, 2008.

Independent directors

Mr. Zhou Dao-jiong, 76, independent director of the company and
chairman of Tao Xing-zhi Fund of China, chairman of Investment
Committee of China, advisor to Society of Finance of China and
Society of Market Economic of China, and part-time professor
in Beijing University, People’s University of China, Central South
Economic and Finance University, Northeast Economic and Finance
University and Southwest Economic and Finance University. Mr.
Zhou joined in work in 1950 and has been the head of Finance
Department of Anhui provincial government and secretary-general
of provincial government, president of China Construction Bank
and chairman of China Investment Bank, deputy executive director
of Securities Committee of State Council, deputy president of
State Development Bank and chairman of Securities Supervisory
& Management Committee of China. He was appointed as

independent director of the Company since September 2000.
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Ms. Ding Xue-mei, 50, professor and with a doctor degree, now
deputy executive director of Graduate School of Harbin Institute
of Technology. Ms. Ding graduated from Harbin Institute of
Technology in 1986 and was conferred master degree. In 1991,
she studied in Lausanne Federal Institute of Industry of Swiss,
engaged in research work in this institute after she was conferred
doctor degree in 1995. Dr. Ding has been appointed as assistant
professor, professor, tutor for doctoral candidates in Harbin Institute
of Technology, head of training department of Graduate School
and deputy director of Graduate School. She was appointed as the
executive deputy director in 1998. Dr. Ding is now the executive
chairman of Joint Conference for Directors of Graduate School
of China and vice chairman of Harbin Science & Technology
Association. She was appointed as independent director of the

Company since September 2000.

Mr. Jia Cheng-bing, 67, senior engineer and with a bachelor
degree, now deputy managing director of China Machinery Industry
Federation, president of China Foundry Association. Mr. Jia
graduated from Hefei University of Technology, majoring in foundry.
He joined in work in July 1965. He has been deputy section
chief, section chief of Ministry of Machinery Electronics Industry
and Ministry of Machine Building Industry; department head of
Human Resources and director of the general office of Ministry
of Machine Building Industry; Party commissioner of the Ministry
of Machine Building Industry. In March 2001, chairman of the
Supervisory Committee for various large State Council organizations
(China National Materials Industry Group, China State Shipbuilding
Corporation, The State Development and Investment Corp.). Since
February 2006, he was appointed as deputy managing directors
of China Machinery Industry Federation and president of China
Foundry Association. He was appointed as independent director of
the Company since September 20086.
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Ms. Li He-jun, 65, senior economist and with a bachelor degree,
now vice chairperson of the Board of Southwest Aluminum (Group)
Co. Ltd, vice chairperson of the Board of Shanxi Hancheng Coal
Company, executive director of China Association of Women
Entrepreneurs and committee member of the Financial Advisory
Committee. Ms. Li graduated from Central Institute of Finance and
Economics (currently known as Central University of Finance and
Economics), majoring in finance and accounting. She joined in work
in August 1966. She has been deputy section chief and section
chief of Henan Province Planning Commission, vice president
and Party's vice secretary of China Construction Bank Henan
Branch. In 1993, she was president and Party secretary of China
Construction Bank Henan Branch, and director of Henan Provincial
Investment Association. In 1999, she was the chief commissioner
of the Execute Commission and Audit Commission for China Cinda
Asset Management Corporation. Since 2004, she was appointed
as commissioner of China Cinda Asset Management Corporation
Expert Advisory Commission, vice chairperson of the Board of
Southwest Aluminum (Group) Co. Ltd, vice chairperson of the Board
of Shanxi Hangcheng Coal Company, executive director of China
Association of Women Entrepreneurs, commissioner of Finance
Inquiry Commission and senior advisor for Lehman Brothers Asia
Holding Inc. She was appointed as independent director of the
Company since September 2006.

Mr. Jiang Kui, 57, senior engineer (professor level) and with a
bachelor degree, now general manager of Heilongjiang Power Co.
Ltd. Mr. Jiang graduated from Northeast Agricultural University.
He joined in work in 1969. He has been technician of Heilongjiang
Electric Power Design Institute; deputy section manager, section
manager, deputy section chief of Heilongjiang Electric Power
Industry Bureau, education section; deputy director of the education
and training department; director of the general manager's office,
deputy chief financial official, and deputy general manager of
the Heilongjiang Power Co. Ltd. He was appointed as general
manager of Heilongjiang Power Co. Ltd. in November 2005. He was
appointed as independent director of the Company since September
2006.




EE EERESNEBRAERE @

Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management (continued)

BES
BRRAKRES

IERKE  BF8H ABBE  s&IRE
BT BEARENIRERREREXESX
—NANE+ AT - BEEBTERBHE
ACEBNERREGR R T EIBAB RS
BREERR — NN\ NFETRBERLES
BEE - —MN_FEREBEREEREAR
MAEAAE  BEEL - —WNEF—AE
NEBHARE EERDEREME  FREW
E-—NAWNAFLtAETHREERRERTE
RER  BAKE - —NMNAAFERREHRE
MAREE  BEBREMBUETRAAER -
“NMNANEFEEEVERRANREZERL  L£ERE
i —THANFETEREERERARES - BZ
EiL  LZER - —ET-FHEPEEEZKER
RIEZER  FEKE - —TTLFRAERD
BEURBEERREZRELR £ZEX K
EARBREREZ  LZERL - —TT/\F=A
BERRREFEELIE -

BIBELE - REA5E - MELEZERE  aRIRE
B REAKBERBERREEEERRER
R -BEE-NNRFEERENIEARR A
FMAREERE  BEAKEREQRDERD
BE AR BEERAENE  BR BXE
BRRERRDEEHY  —TTEFEELEE
BEREARE  —TTNFECXERERER
B °

SUPERVISORS
Supervisors representing shareholders

Mr. Wang Zhi-sen, 58, senior engineer and with a bachelor
degree. Mr. Wang graduated from Qinghua University, majoring in
electrical engineering. Mr. Wang joined in work in October 1968.
He was deputy division chief of Enterprise Cadre Administration
Office of Department of Cadre under Ministry of Machine Industry,
deputy division chief of general office of department of personal
and labor under Ministry of Machine Industry. He was director of
information sector of China Electrical Engineering News in 1989,
head and secretary of Party Committee of Instrument and Meter
Technology Institute under Ministry of Machinery and Electronics
Industry in 1992; deputy director of general office of Ministry
of Internal Trade in January 1995. He was secretary of Party
Committee, deputy general manager of China National Agricultural
Machinery Corporation; director of State Commission for Economic
Restructuring in 1996. He was secretary of Party Committee, and
secretary of Discipline Committee of Huaxing Products Corporation
in 1998; director , secretary of Party Committee, and secretary of
Discipline Committee of China Huaxing Group in 2001. In June
2007, he was appointed as one member of the Company’s Standing
Communist Party Committee and secretary of Discipline Committee
of Harbin Power Equipment Group Corporation, simultaneously
as a one member of the Company's Standing Communist Party
Committee and secretary of Discipline Committee of the Company.
He was appointed as chairman of the Supervisory of Company in
March 2008.

Mr. Yang Xu, 45, senior engineer and with a master degree,
director of enterprise management and development department
of the Boiler Company of the Group. Mr. Yang graduated from
Jilin Industry University in 1986 and joined in HPEGC in the same
year. He has been enterprise management staff in the enterprise
management department, secretary of general manager office,
assistant director of enterprise management and development
department of the Boiler Company of the Group. In 2004, he
was appointed as deputy director of enterprise management and
development department. In 2004, he was appointed as director of

enterprise management and development department.
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Supervisors representing staff and workers

Ms. Lu Chun-lian, 50, senior engineer and with a bachelor degree,
now supervisor representing staff and workers of the Company and
vice chief engineer and deputy head of Electrical Machinery Institute
of the Electric Machinery Company of HE. Ms. Lu graduated from
Harbin Institute of Electrical Engineering in 1982 and joined in HE
in the same year. She has been an engineer and deputy director
of insulation material Research Section under Electrical Machinery
Research Institute and director of technology department of
coil factory in the Electric Machinery Company. In 2002, Ms. Lu
was elected as head of coil workshop in the Electric Machinery
Company. In September 2003, Ms. Lu was elected as supervisor
of the Company. In March, 2008, Ms. Lu was elected as vice chief
engineer of the Electric Machinery Company of HE. On 2nd April,
2009, Ms. Lu was elected as deputy head of Electrical Machinery
Institute of the Electric Machinery Company of HE.

Mr. Gao Xu-guang, 38, senior engineer and with a bachelor
degree, now director of corporate development research center of
Harbin Turbine Company Limited. Mr. Gao graduated from Harbin
Institute of Technology with a bachelor degree. He joined in work
in July 1994. He has been deputy director of the general manager
office and the secretary of the Board of Harbin Turbine Company
Limited. He was appointed as director of corporate development

research center of the Company in May 2004.

Independent supervisors

Mr. Chen Si, 41, senior accountant and with a master degree,
certified public valuer, now vice chairman of the Board for
DeveChina Co. Ltd. Mr. Chen graduated from Xiamen University
with a master degree in statistics. He joined in work in July 1990.
He has been cadre officials of Beijing Municipal Statistics Bureau
and National State Asset Management Bureau-Asset Value Center;
valuer of the Assets Evaluation Association of China; deputy director
of operation department of Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He was appointed as vice chairman of the Board for
DeveChina Co. Ltd in February 2002. On 6th January, 2009, Mr.

Chen resigned as the independent supervisor of the Company.
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SENIOR MANAGERS

Mr. Zhang Hai-quan, 48, senior engineer and master of business
administration, now deputy general manager of the Company. Mr.
Zhang graduated from Harbin Institute of Electrical Engineering in
1984, and joined in HE in the same year. He has been engineer of
the enginery repairing workshop, secretary and assistant director
of the Communist Party Committee Office of former Boiler Works
of HE. In 1994, Mr. Zhang participated in the reorganization of HE
and share issuing and listing of the Company. Since November
1994, he has been appointed as vice director of the general
manager office, vice director of planning department and director
of enterprise administration department, and director of auditing
and law department of the Boiler Company of HE. In 1998, he
was transferred acting as one member of the Group’s and the
Company’s Standing Communist Party Committee and director
of organization department. In 1999, Mr. Zhang was appointed as
secretary of the Communist Party Committee and vice chairman
of Archeng Relay Group Company and Archeng Relay Company
Limited, one of the Group's subsidiaries. He has been appointed as

deputy general manager of the Company since October 2000.

Mr. Liu Zhi-quan, 41, senior accountant and master of business
administration, now deputy general manager. Mr. Liu graduated
from Harbin Institute of Technology, majoring in industrial
accounting with a bachelor degree. He subsequently obtained his
MBA qualification from the same university. He joined in work in
September 1991. He has been the assistant for the section chief,
deputy section chief, section chief of finance department, chief
account official and section chief of finance department of the Boiler
Company of HE. He was appointed as the deputy general manager
of the Boiler Company in April 2001. Mr. Liu was appointed as vice

general manager of the Company since September 2006.
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Mr. Han Jian-wei, 53, researcher & senior engineer and with a
bachelor degree, now deputy general manager of the Company.
Mr. Han joined in work in October 1973, and graduated from Harbin
Institute of Technology in 1982 and was conferred the bachelor
degree. He has been designer of design division, installation
worker and deputy section chief of user service division, director
of production division of Harbin Boiler Company Ltd of HE. He has
been vice chief economist, vice general manager, chairman, general
manager of HBC. He was appointed as deputy general manager of

the Company since 26th December, 2007.

Mr. Feng Yong-giang, 46, senior political-work master and master
of business administration, now deputy general manager of the
Company and secretary of the Communist Party Committee of the
Boiler Company of the Group. Mr. Feng graduated from Harbin
Institute of Electrical Engineering in 1985, majoring in electrical
engineering, and joined in HE in the same year. He was the
secretary of the Communist Party Committee Office, secretary of
Youth League, secretary and factory director of piping workshop,
and factory director of heavy vessel workshop of former Boiler
Works of HE. He was deputy secretary of the Communist Party
Committee and secretary of the Supervisory Committee of
the Boiler Company in 1997. He was the standing committee
and deputy mayor of the city of Tongliao in the Inner Mongolia
Autonomous Region in November 2001. He was appointed as
deputy secretary of the Communist Party Committee of the Boiler
Company in November 2003.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ma Sui, 52, associate professor and master of business
administration, now company secretary of the Company and
director of office. Mr. Ma joined in work in 1976. He graduated from
Northeast Heavy Machinery Institute in 1982 and joined in HE in the
same year. He used to work at the Company’s electrical machinery
plant on staff training and corporate planning. He has been deputy
chancellor of the Staff Collage, deputy office director of the
Company, department head of the corporate planning department,
deputy chief financial official, etc. He was appointed as the director
of office in May 2003, and director of the secretarial bureau of the
board of directors from May 2006.
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The Directors are pleased to submit 2008 annual report and audited
financial statements for the year ended 31st December, 2008 of the

Company.

PRINCIPLE ACTIVITIES

The Company and its principal subsidiaries are mainly engaged in
manufacturing and sales of various kinds of power equipments and
power station engineering services, which are set out in Note 6 to

the financial statements.

All the activities of the Group are based in the PRC, where 91 per

cent of the Group's turnover is derived from.

The export sales of the Group for the year ended 31st December,
2008 amounted to US$411.87 million, representing 9.41 per cent of
the Group's total turnover for the year. The Group's export markets

mainly include Asian, African countries and Russia.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

The Company has seven principal subsidiaries. Harbin Electrical
Machinery Co., Ltd is mainly in the field of manufacture and sales
of hydro generator units and steam turbine generator units. Harbin
Boiler Co., Ltd is mainly in the field of manufacture and sales on
boilers for power stations. Harbin Turbine Co., Ltd is mainly in the
field of manufacture and sales on steam turbine for power stations.
Harbin Power Engineering Co., Ltd is mainly in the field of the turn-
key construction of power station projects and complete set of
power station equipment. MEEE (RE2E5)ERNEHEFRAA is
mainly in the field of manufacture and assembly on equipments
such as large scale thermal power, nuclear power and gas turbine.
MREERBIXERERAREMEAAF is mainly in the field of
manufacture and sales on medium-to-heavy-duty AC/DC motors and
nuclear power main pump motors and M EEBEBERETREIAE
[R/A 7] is mainly in the field of manufacture and sales on valves for
power stations.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries for the year ended
31st December, 2008 are set out in Note 44 to the financial

statements.
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FINANCIAL RESULTS AND DISTRIBUTION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2008
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 59 of the

annual report.

The Directors propose the distribution of profit after taxation and

minority interests for 2008 as follows:

1. To transfer Rmb28.41 million to the statutory surplus reserve.

2. The Directors propose a dividend of Rmb0.075 per share
(appropriate tax included) for 2008 for shareholders who
registered on shareholder’ list before 12th May, 2009;
payment of dividends totally amounted to Rmb103.26 million.
Shareholders of H share will be paid in Hong Kong dollar; the
exchange rate used is based on average closing rate of the
People’s Bank of China during the five days preceding the date
of 24th April, 2009, which is Rmb1 for HK$1.134 The dividend
for every H share will be HK$0.0851 (appropriate tax included).

3. The Register of members of the Company will be closed from
12th May, 2009 to 11th June, 2009, (both days inclusive). Final
dividends for 2008 will be distributed to shareholders whose
names appear in the Register of members of the Company
on 12th May 2009 before 14th August 2009. In order to
qualify for the final dividend for 2008, all transfers documents,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged
with the Company’s Registrar, namely, Hong Kong Registrars
Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30
p.m., Monday, 11th May 2009.

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Details of directors and supervisors are set out in the Section

“Director, Supervisors and Senior Managers” of the annual report.
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGERS’
INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

As at 31st December, 2008, none of the directors, supervisors
and senior management of the Company had any interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares and/or debentures (as
the case may be) of the Company and/or of any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which was
required to be notified to the Company and the HKSE pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interest and short
position which any such director, supervisor or senior management
is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO)
or which was required to be entered in the Register kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or which was required
to be notified to the Company and the HKSE pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listing Companies

as contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

There are service contracts between every director, supervisor and
the Company, among which Mr. Zou Lei's contract will expire by
the conclusion of the forthcoming general meeting, while others’
will expire by 29th September, 2009. Besides this, there are no
existing and suggesting service contracts between every director,

supervisor and any member company of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

None of the director or supervisor of the Company has any
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, in the contracts of
significance, to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries is a

party during the year.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Details of the salaries and bonuses of the directors or supervisors
of the Company for the year ended 31st December, 2008 are set

out in Note 11 to the financial statements.
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID PERSONNEL

The five highest paid personnel of the Company during the year are

all directors and supervisors.

RETIREMENT AND BENEFIT SCHEME

Details of the retirement and benefit scheme are set out in Note 39

to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the

Group are set out in Note 14 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

The Group's reserves available for distribution are Rmb6,759.27
million until 31st December, 2008. Movements in the reserves
of the Group and the Company during the year are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity to the financial

statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The financial highlights of the Group for the last five years are set

out in the Section “Financial Highlights"” to the annual report.

BORROWINGS

Details of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group are set out

in Note 32 to the financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold

or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or PRC Law, which would require the
Company to issue new shares to the existing shareholders

according to their respective proportions of shareholding.
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MAJOR LITIGATION

There is no major litigation of the Group for the year 2008.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

The material contracts of the Group for the year are detailed in the
Sections “Management Discussion and Analysis” and “Disclosure

of Significant Events” of the annual report.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

1. The aggregate amount of purchases during the period
attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers represented
10.87 per cent of the Group's total purchases. Among which
the largest supplier is Yangzhou Chengde Steel Tube Co. Ltd,

representing 2.65 per cent.

2. 13.93 per cent of the total turnover of the Group during the
period was attributable to the Group's five largest customers.
Amongst which the owner of Indonesia Baitong project was
the largest customer, accounting for 3.81 per cent of the total

turnover.

3. None of the directors, supervisors, their associates or any
shareholders of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors own more than 5 per cent of the Company's share
capital) has any interest in above mentioned suppliers or

customers.

PROCEEDS FROM THE H SHARES ISSUE

The use of listing proceeds of the Company for the period details in
the Section “Management Discussion and Analysis” of the annual

report.

ENTRUSTED DEPOSITS AND OVERDUE TIME DEPOSITS

As at 31st December, 2008, the Company had no entrusted
deposits in commercial banks or non-bank financial institutions and

had no due deposits that had not been withdrawn.
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INCOME TAX AND EXPORT VAT REBATE

According to provisions of Administrative Measures with regard to
the Recognition of Advanced Technology Enterprises ({5 ¥HufiT
PERTEEEIVE)) jointly issued by the Ministry of Science and
Technology, the Ministry of Finance and the State Administration
for Taxation of the PRC on 14th April, 2008 and the Administrative
Guidance with regard to the Recognition of Advanced Technology
Enterprises (@i E B2 TIEIES])) jointly issued by the
Ministry of Science and Technology, the Ministry of Finance and the
State Administration of Taxation on 8th July 2008, 6 subsidiaries
of the Company including Harbin Electrical Machinery Co., Ltd,
Harbin Boiler Co., Ltd, Harbin Turbine Co., Ltd, M BR/AB KM E
MEMAREEARF and MEEBMRRESBLEFHPIER AT were re-
recognised as High-Tech enterprises, which entitles the Company
to a 15% preferential income tax rate and therefore is significant to

the long-term development of the Company.

In accordance with regulations of the State Administration for
Taxation, the rate for tax rebate of the Group’s new export products

contracts is 13 per cent since 15th October, 2003.

According to the Provisional Regulations of the People’s Republic
of China Concerning Value Added Tax ((FRZE A RLFIEISERE
1716f1)) effective from 1st January 2009 issued by the Ministry
of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation of the PRC on
18th December 2008, the Company and its major subsidiaries were
included in the general scope of transformation of value added
tax. These companies will implement the new Implementation of
the Provisional Regulations of the PRC on Value-added Tax ({#
#EARLFBIEETEGITIEGIEHEARI)) and are allowed to rebate
their value-added tax incurred in the purchase of equipment. Other
incentive policies promulgated by various divisions of the state to
implement the Opinions of Central Committee of the Communist
Party of China and the State Council on the Revitalization Strategies
for Historical Industrial Bases of the Northeast Regions ({Frtrh
R BEBEEAREBRRIMREE T EEMREMKKOETERL))
(Zhong Fa (2003) No.11) and support such revitalization will remain

effective.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

For the connected transactions, see the details in Note 40 to the

financial statements of the annual report.

CONFIRMATION ON CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Independent Directors of the Company have, in such capacity,
reviewed the connected transactions (as defined in the Listing Rule)
referred to in Note 40 to the financial statements and confirmed
that:

1. Such transactions have been entered into by the Company in

the ordinary and usual course of its business; and

2. Such transactions have been entered into either (I) on normal
commercial terms (which expression will be applied by
reference to transactions of a similar nature and to be made
by similar entities with PRC) or (lI) (where there is no available
comparison) on terms that are fair and reasonable so far as the

shareholders of the Company are concerned; and

3. Such transactions have been entered into either (I) in accordance
with the terms of the relevant agreements governing such
transactions or (ll) (where there is no such agreement) on terms

no less favorable than terms available to third parties.

THE CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS INDEPENDENCE

The Company has already received the Annual Letter of
Confirmation from every independent non-executive director
on their independence. Their independence accord to every
independence index issued in article 3.13 in Listing Rules and they

are independent person.
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SHARE CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31st December, 2008, the share capital structure of the
Company comprised of 1,376,806,000 shares, of which 701,235,000
shares were held by the promoter (representing 50.93 per cent

of the entire share capital) and 675,571,000 shares were held by

overseas H shares investors (representing 49.07 per cent of the

entire share capital).

NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS

Details of the Company's registered shareholders as at 31st

December 2008 were as follows:

Holders of State Shares (held by the Promoter)
Holders of H Shares

Total number of shareholders

124

125
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TOP TEN SHAREHOLDERS

who hold the most shares were as follows:

As at 31st December, 2008, the top ten registered shareholders

W
ERBES
IR& Percentage
BERARE Number of of Shares B
Name of Shareholders Shares Holdings Note
KEEERERE AR 701,235,000 50.93% HAR
Harbin Electric Corporation H shares
HKSCC Nominees Limited 673,530,598 48.92% HA%
H shares
YIP CHOK CUIU 360,000 0.02% HA%
H shares
LAM MAN LAN 250,000 0.01% HA%
H shares
CHEUNG YUM TIN 200,000 0.01% HAx
H shares
HO CHI KUN 100,000 0.01% HAX
H shares
MOK WING TI 50,000 0.00% HA%
H shares
YIH SIU LAl HAR 50,000 0.00% HA%
H shares
YIP KWAI WA 50,000 0.00% HAx
H shares
AN HUI TAO 40,000 0.00% HA%

H shares
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HEREEBEESIT(RE-SFSTNE+=A INTEREST’S IN THE SHARE CAPITAL ANALYSIS OF

=+—HERHR&M) HOLDERS OF H SHARES (ACCORDING TO SHAREHOLDERS
LIST AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2008)

HE T

A R HRB 2t

Scope Number of Number of Percentage to

& [ (number of shares) shareholders share holding Issued H shares

1-1000 1 -1000 4 402 0.00%

1,001 - 5,000 1,001 - 5,000 56 158,000 0.02%

5,001 - 10,000 5,001 - 10,000 29 252,000 0.04%

10,001 — 100,000 10,001 — 100,000 31 850,000 0.13%

100,001 — A k= 100,001 above 4 674,310,598 99.81%

a5t Total 124 675,571,000 100%
HEE=pA| MODEL CODE
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The Company, having made specific enquiry, confirms that all
members of the Board complied with the Model Code set out in

Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules throughout the period.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied throughout the year of 2008 with all
code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance

Practices contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Pursuant to the authority delegated in the annual general meeting of
the previous year, the fifth session Board of the Company resolved
to appoint Mr. Zou Lei as an executive director of the Company
on 11th February 2009. His term of office will expire upon the

conclusion of the forthcoming general meeting of the Company.
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AUDITORS

The current PRC auditor of the Company is China Rightson YueHua
Certified Public Accountants Company Limited, and the Hong Kong
auditor is Yuehua (Hong Kong) CPA Limited.

By order of the Board
Gong Jing-kun

Chairman

24th April, 2009



EEEaRss

Report of the Supervisory Committee

BEMRER :

BIF—ZZNF+_RA=+—HILFE(KEF
B) BREHNREBRNERAAEETE (X
EFEE)EBKE  RR(PEARKNMBE LA
) (BERABMARSMERARIZEZLEMMR
ADMARRERETHRE  REBTEER
BRI BESNBRRAE  JIFEESGHEM
BHREFEEHE  HRRRXNBEMERETE
#HARAELEEHNERTENRE  KHEE
ABBTRABESERTEE - YHRANE
ERESEAFREEHE2HE - REREZEZRUE
R (B T ARSRTIENRERE -

HARARFEZIE AEZSHRNTEVE
8

1. EAXAFER - RERBBREHTEZIER
AR B EMARMREBIZFEF - BREH
TBRRAGNEIEARE - RSB RS
RABFNRER BROETHERRN
BiRE T8 TR EHBERS A - AR
MABEEEZRETHRRBAT @« £EL
LESHEBIME THOME - HTIEXE
LT ANREH -

To all shareholders:

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 (the year), all members
of the Supervisory Committee (“the Committee”) of Harbin Power
Equipment Company Limited (“the Company”) carefully fulfilled
their Supervisory Committee functions in accordance with the
regulations of the PRC Company Law, the Listing Rules of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the Articles of Association of
the Company. The Committee has reviewed documents submitted
by the Company and supervised the Company's activities and the
manager level members’ work performance by way of participating
in the General Meeting and the Company’s Board of Directors
Meetings and convening up Supervisory Committee Meetings. In
addition, the Committee participated actively in significant events of
the Company, such as the Company's production and management
etc. and gave a lot of positive opinions and suggestions, which

pushed forward the Company's work to smoothly develop.

For the Company’s work during the period under review, the

Committee presents the following independent opinions:

1. During the year under review, the Company strictly complied
with the nation’s laws and regulations, operated in accordance
with the procedures regulating listing companies, and duly
executed various resolutions passed at the shareholders’
meeting. With the aim of increasing cost effectiveness and
overall competitiveness, the Company actively respond to
international financial crisis, insisted on the strategic policy of
sustainable development. Under the effort of all the staff of the
Company and its subsidiaries, the Company obtained the new
achievements in the production and management etc., with a

satisfactory business performance.
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2. The Committee is aware that the directors and other senior
managers have actively carried out their duties in the best
interests of the shareholders. In addition, they carried out
carefully the resolutions and decisions from the General
Meetings and the Board of Directors. They have not abused
their powers to act against the regulations of national laws,
rules and the Article of Association of the Company interests of
the Company and rights and interests of the shareholders and

employees.

3. The Committee has reviewed the Company’s financial situations
and got the conclusion that the Company's financial work
was operated step by step according to inner control system
and the financial management system. The proposed annual
financial report and dividend scheme by the Board of Directors,
for approval of the Annual General Meeting, objectively and
comprehensively reflected the operation results and asset
condition of the Company. Both interests of shareholders and
the Company’s long-term development have been taken into
account in the dividend scheme. Statutory reserve and public
welfare fund provided in the year were in accordance with
provisions of laws and regulations, and Articles of Association of

the Company.

4. The Supervisory Committee reviewed the report of the Board.
It is of the opinion that the report gives an objective and true

picture of the works performed by the Company during the year.

The Committee sincerely appreciates trust and support from
every employee of the Company and shareholders. With positively
exploring new supervisory approach and method, establishing
detailed supervisory and inspect method, the Committee will
perform supervisory function better and work hard for achieving

production and operation target in 2009 of the Company.
For and on behalf of the Supervisory Committee
Wang Zhi-sen

Chairman
Harbin, the People's Republic of China, 24th, April, 2009
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te Governance Report

The Company has improved and perfected the company's corporate
governing structure and standardized the Company’s operation
through strictly complying with the Company Law of the People's
Republic of China, the Securities Law of the People’'s Republic of
China and the relevant provisions of China Securities Regulatory

Commission.

During the year 2008, the Company fully complied with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited Appendix XIV: Code on Corporate Governance

Practices.
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SHAREHOLDERS AND SHAREHOLDERS® GENERAL
MEETING

The Company protects shareholder’s interests, treats all
shareholders equally, and initiates participation of shareholders in
corporate governance and management. Shareholders as the owner
of the Company enjoy rights as laws and regulations provided and
shoulder commensurate obligations. The shareholders enjoy rights
to information and rights to decision-making for the Company's
important matters. The General Meeting of Shareholders is the
organ of authority of the Company, and it exercises its functions

and power according to laws.

The Harbin Electric Corporation, a stated-owned company registered
in the People's Republic of China, is the controlling shareholder of

the Company.

In 2008, the Company had an Annual General Meeting and an

Extraordinary General Meeting.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The major duties of the Board of Director are to exercise the
discretion in management decision of the Company according to the
authorization by the Shareholders’ General meeting with respect to
the development strategies, management structure, investment and
financing, planning and financial control, which are set out in details

in the Articles of Assocation.

1. Composition

The Board of Directors is the fifth Board of Directors of the
Company since its establishment, which is composed of
eleven Directors, five of which are independent Directors. Ten
of the eleven directors have a term of three years calculated
from 29th September, 2006; their term of office expires on
29th September, 2009. Mr. Zou Lei, who was elected as the
added director on 11th February, 2009, has a term by the end

of the next Annual General Meeting.
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Positions of the Chairperson of the Board of Directors
and the General Manager are held by different individuals;
their responsibility and duty are distinct and separate. The
Chairperson of the Board of Directors presides over meetings
of the Board of Directors and reviews on the implementation
of resolutions passed by the Board of Directors. The General
Manager is responsible for management and coordination
of the operation of the Company, implementation of the
resolutions passed by the Board of Directors and making

decisions on a daily basis.

Biographies of the members of the Board of Directors are
included in the Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

section of this Annual Report.

Independent Directors

This session of the Company’s Board of Directors has five
independent Directors. All the independent Directors are
familiar with the powers and responsibilities of the Directors
and independent Directors of a listed company. During the
reporting period, all the independent Directors attended
the meetings of Directors with the attitude of prudent and
responsible; they fully utilized their experiences and specialties,
contributed greatly toward the improvement and perfection
of the corporate governance mechanism and the important
decision making processes; they also provided pertinent,
objective advices in regard to important decisions and
connected transactions of the Company, further standardized
the decision making process of the Board of Directors and
making this process more scientific, therefore protected the

interests of the company and the shareholders as a whole.

The Company has received annual confirmation from each of

the independent Directors about his/her independence.
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3. Eszgem : 3. Meetings of the Board of Directors
FERNARRTHBITEREFTESE © T During the year, five Board of Directors’ meetings were hold
TIMRBEER  BEHR  ZERMEKE to discuss the overall strategies, investment plans, operation
B ARRBYEEUARFRKEBRE and financial performance of the Company. The independent
BEZ -gxdEBROT : Directors have no dissenting opinions regarding any of the

Company's resolutions. Attendances of the meetings are as

follows:

EZ2mE=g83 ¥ BB HEOR) =
EEME Attendance Attendance in Attendance
Name of Director Required (No.) Person (No.) Ratio
BRERE Mr. Gong Jing-kun 5 5 100%
MZEE (ZZZNF  Mr. Zou Lei

—RA+—HBimeE (new elected director
ZEE) on 11th February, 2009)

i AN Mr. Qu Da-zhuang 5 5 100%
Bt EREE Mr. Duan Hong-yi 5 5 100%
Bl Mr. Shang Zhong-fu 5 5 100%
REBLRE Mr. Wu Wei-zhang 5 4 80%
[EE L Mr. Zhou Dao-jiong 5 4 80%
BRI E Mr. Jia Cheng-bing 5 5 100%
FRARL Ms. Li He-jun 5 5 100%
TERZ+ Ms. Ding Xue-mei 5 4 80%
EREE Mr. Jiang Kui 5 2 40%
FTEERHEBBARIMEREESARESE : The relevant information and current development of the statutory,
WEBTHNEAT B NRETEESENHEBE supervisory and other continuous responsibilities of the Company’s
B REHenm @ IERERTREZZEE - 7 Board of Directors can be obtained by all Directors through the
BEEeNEFEUERRITURERAEE - Secretary of the Company in a timely fashion, so as all Directors
EREAREET  c ARREBNESEEES understand his/her duties, and the procedures of the Board of
EeAERE T EEREFF T EFME SEHR Directors are properly implemented and applicable laws and

% RUBEAENSIRER B A REE

o

regulations are correctly complied. The Directors and the Board of
Directors’ special committees have the right to appoint independent
professional organizations for their service according to the
requirement of their duties; the reasonable costs incurred in those

occasions are born by the Company.
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The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Companies set out in Appendix X of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited as a model code for Directors of the company.
Specific enquiries have been made of all Directors, who have
confirmed their compliance with the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies during the reporting

period.

SPECIAL COMMITTEES UNDER BOARD

The Company has established four Special Committees, namely the
audit committee, the Remuneration committee, the nominations
committee and the strategy development committee; their

members consist of Directors.

The Audit Committee of the fifth session of the Board of Directors
includes: Li He-jun, Ding Xue-mei, and Duan Hong-yi. Two-third of
the members of the Audit Committee are independent Directors and
independent Director Li He-jun is the chairperson of the Committee,
as in accordance with the stipulation of the Listing Rule, Article
3.21. During the year, the Audit Committee held two meetings,
and had reviewed the Group’s annual and semi-annual performance

reports and Financial Reports.

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The Company’s Supervisory Committee consists of four supervisors,

of which two supervisors are representing staff and workers.

(A) The Supervisory Committee Meeting in the period under

review:

The Supervisory Committee held three meetings in the period

under review, the main contents of which are as follows:

1. On 7th March, 2008, the Company held the extraordinary
meeting of the Supervisory Committee, and elected Mr.

Wang Zhisen as Chairman of the Supervisory Committee.

2. The Fourth Meeting of the Fifth Term of Supervisory
Committee was held on 11th April, 2008, which passed
the Company's report of Supervisory Committee, Audited

Financial Reports and Annual Report for the year 2007.
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1.

The Fifth Meeting of the Fifth Term of Supervisory
Committee was held on 29th August, 2008, which
passed the resolutions on the Company's Interim Audited
Financial Reports and Interim Reports for the first half of
2008.

Independent Opinions of the Supervisory Committee to
the Related Matters of the Company in the Year 2008

The Company’s Operating Validity

According to related laws and regulations, the Supervisory
Committee has supervised and examined the convening
procedures of the General Meeting and the Board of
Directors Meeting 2008, resolution matters, the Board
of Directors’ implementation of the General Meeting
resolutions, the enforcement of the Company's
management rules and the efficiency of the Company's
operating and managing, and the Supervisory Committee
deemed that the Company has operated strictly according
with the related provisions of the PRC Company Law, the
Listing Rules, the Articles of Association of the Company
and other regulations; that the Company operates under
scientific and proper decision making procedure; and that
the Company further perfected its internal management

and built favorable inner control system in 2008.

Reviewing the Financial Situations of the Company

The Supervisory Committee carefully reviewed the
Company’'s Financial Balancing Report 2008, Profit
Distribution Scheme and the Audited Financial Reports
2008 (audited and submitted by Yuehua CPA Limited),
which the Board of Directors arranged to submit to the
General Meeting. The Supervisory Committee deemed
that the Company's audited Financial Reports 2008
was true and credible, which objectively presented the
Company’s financial situations and business results. The
Supervisory Committee approved the Company’s Financial
Auditing Reports submitted by accounting offices both at

home and abroad.
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3. The Implementation of the General Meeting

Resolutions

The members of the Supervisory Committee participated
in the Board of Directors Meeting and the General
Meeting without voting, the Supervisory Committee
supervised the implementation of the General Meeting
resolutions, and deemed that the Board of Directors could

carefully carry out the General Meeting decisions.

(C) The Implementation of Supervisory Duties by the
Supervisory Committee

The Supervisory Committee supervised the Directors and
senior managers of the Company in accordance with the
related laws and the Articles of Association of the Company,
and deemed that the Directors and senior managers of the
Company carried out their duties lawfully, without any act
against the related laws and regulations and he Articles of

Association of the Company or the interests of the Company.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND INTERNAL AUDIT

The Board of Directors is responsible to establish and maintain the
internal control system of the Company, and to establish the Audit
Committee. The Company has established the audit department
internally, which monitors and supervise the disclosure of financial
information by the Company regularly or where necessary, as
well as operation and internal control activities, so as to ensure
the transparency of information disclosure externally, operation
efficiency and effectiveness in corporate control mechanisms.
According to the requirement of the basic specification of
corporation internal control of the Ministry of Finance, Securities
and Futures Commission, the Audit Commission, the China
Banking Regulatory Commission and China Insurance Regulatory
Commission, the Company had implementation of the internal
control assessment project from 31st October, 2008, and employ
PricewaterhouseCoopers to provide consulting service about this

project.
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AUDITORS

The tenth meeting for the Fifth Board was held on 29th August
2008. During the meeting, it was decided that YueHua Certified
Public Accountants Company Limited would be appointed as the
Chief Auditor for the financial reports prepared according to PRC
Accounting Rules and Regulations for the year 2008, and Yuehua
(Hong Kong) CPA Limited would be appointed as the auditor for
the international financial reports pursuant to the authority of the

Shareholders’ General Meeting.

The financial statements included in the annual report of the
Company for the year 2008 were prepared according to PRC
Accounting Rules and Regulations and Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, and were audited by China Rightson YueHua
Certified Public Accountants Company Limited, the domestic
auditor, and Yuehua (Hong Kong) CPA Limited, the international

auditor.

Information Publication and Supervision

The Company continuously improves information publication
management and enhances the investor communication
management. The Company discloses information on an open,
fair, true, accurate, complete and timely ground and strictly in
accordance with the related disclosure requirements of relative
laws and regulations, the Article of Association of the Company and
Listing Rules, and improves the Company’s transparency. In order
to improve the communication with investors, the Company issues
its Interim Report and Annual Reports timely, provides quality
services to investing visitors and participates in investor forums, and
illustrates to the investors the Company's latest development and

vision through telephone meetings and performance presentations.

The board secretaries department of the Company is responsible
for the information publication. The Company will perform its duties,
continuously enhance its governance structure and improve its
management strictly in accordance with related laws and regulations

of securities supervisory organizations at home and abroad.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HARBIN POWER EQUIPMENT COMPANY LIMITED

(A joint stock company established in the People’s Republic of
China with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Harbin
Power Equipment Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 59 to 137 which comprise the consolidated and company
balance sheets as at 31st December, 2008, and the consolidated
income statements, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statement based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and
true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31st December, 2008 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

YUEHUA CPA LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 24th April, 2009

HENG KWOO SENG
Practising Certificate Number: P01087



mEBEER
Consolidated Income Statement

HE_TTN\F+_A=T—RHIFE
For the year ended 31st December, 2008

2008 2007

Bt s AR%T R AR¥TT

Notes Rmb’000 Rmb’000
FEEBRBA Turnover 5 29,903,544 27,648,584 59
FEEBRAR Cost of sales (25,896,464) (23,320,873)
FEEKEF Gross profit 4,007,080 4,327,711
HhZERBUA Other income 7 391,260 355,042
EXER Distribution costs (425,281) (413,613)
EEEMA Administrative expenses (2,153,807) (1,886,760)
H 2 H Other expenses (74,000) (149,151)
B Finance costs 8 (195,325) (154,858)
ANl Share of results of associates 20 23,320 37,449
BRBE A aR Al Profit before taxation 1,573,247 2,115,820
HIE Income tax expense 9 (289,532) (331,246)
S R A Profit for the year 10 1,283,715 1,784,574
A D ER : Attributable to:
i /NI Equity holders of the Company 1,041,837 1,527,979
DE IR Minority interests 241,878 256,595

1,283,715 1,784,574

=) Dividends 12 125,289 123,913
BRERN - EARK Earnings per share-basic 13 Rmb75.7 cents Rmb112.3 cents
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At 31st December, 2008

Consolidated Balance Sheet

2008 2007
BiaE ARET T ARET T
Notes Rmb’000 Rmb’'000
ERBEE Non-currents assets
Y% BB KRB Property, plant and equipment 14 3,802,837 2,856,048
WEYZ Investment properties 15 271,383 287,605
R i E Prepaid lease payments 16 350,438 358,098
=k Patents 17 114,223 126,202
RIETIEEE Deferred tax assets 18 133,837 87,105
NN P Xy Interests in associates 20 150,536 128,101
FFIHEMRE Available-for-sale investments 21 27,074 28,074
4,850,328 3,871,233
REBEE Current assets
"rE Inventories 22 12,941,218 10,167,289
W BR X Trade debtors 23 12,354,226 8,994,565
JEWE & Bills receivable 23 361,324 208,710
HAb WK - Ze Rk Other debtors, deposits and
B IR prepayments 23 6,537,067 5,339,159
R LA E Prepaid lease payments 16 9,710 11,760
EEE RIEWGK Amounts due from customers
for contract work 24 1,045,979 3,632,591
FEUR R R [T /&8 A Bl 5/ IE Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries 25 66,353 67,327
B R Hl7F 5K Restricted bank deposits 14,568 6,630
AT Pledged bank deposits 38 484,255 169,684
EHER Bank deposits 26 3,079,921 940,000
RITEFERRS Cash and cash equivalents 26 7,221,676 8,681,542
44,116,297 38,219,257
mENEE Current liabilities
SRIVTETER Derivative financial instrument 27 3,133 -
EEEREMNRK Amounts due to customers for
contract work 24 757,056 758,315
JEAT BR X Trade creditors 28 7,715,110 5,267,391
HAbER R R EETE A Other creditors and accrued charges 28 2,055,636 2,757,797
[EAlerEn Deposits received 29 18,656,591 17,182,390
YSEEL NGRS Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 25 50,069 23,426
RIEWG A RFRIB Advance from holding company 30 13,470 103,956
JER i Tax payables 31 375,591 1,057,226
AR—FRERZER Borrowings — due within one year 32 870,704 753,387
30,497,360 27,903,888
RBEEFRE Net current assets 13,618,937 10,315,369
HRREBEEENEEE Total assets less current liabilities 18,469,265 14,186,602
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

2008 2007
FifE ARBTFE | ARETR
Notes Rmb’000 Rmb’000
B R #E CAPITAL AND RESERVES
A& A Share capital 33 1,376,806 1,376,806
& Reserves 34 6,759,274 5,836,187
SR A IR R Equity attributable to equity holders
of the Company 8,136,080 7,212,993
DEIRRE R Minority interests 1,431,845 1,199,417
Emast TOTAL EQUITY 9,567,925 8,412,410
FknBAE Non-current liabilities
Biuze Deposits received 29 5,059,506 1,621,598
RYERE A RIZRIE Advance from holding company 30 306,720 142,702
AR —FREZBZER Borrowings-due after one year 32 3,535,114 4,009,892
8,901,340 5,774,192
18,469,265 14,186,602
HNECORZ1ITAZMBIMREHESEN = | The consolidated financial statements on pages 59 to 137 were
EEAENAB -+ AEBRHERE - SR T ¢ approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 24th
JNEFRREFTSHE April, 2009 and are signed on its behalf by:
g A5 ERE
Qu Da-zhuang SHANG Zhong-fu
EZE EF

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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Balance Sheet

RZZENF+=A=1+—H
At 31st December, 2008

2008 2007
Bt AR®T T AREFTT
Notes Rmb’000 Rmb’000
FREBEE Non-currents assets
VI - BB RS Property, plant and equipment 14 927,582 398,541
JE T EE Prepaid lease payments 16 34,793 35,548
RSB AR 2= Interests in subsidiaries 19 2,413,428 2,262,001
AN o Interests in associates 20 60,084 41,811
FFHE IR E Available-for-sale investments 21 17,879 17,879
3,453,766 2,755,780
REEE Current assets
T8 Inventories 22 435,165 173,532
FEUER K Trade debtors 309,603 381,244
HAup Uk « e RIFERFIE Other debtors, deposits and
prepayments 299,269 864,937
AT HHEE Prepaid lease payments 16 754 754
JrE B B R R FRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 19 1,347,351 996,022
TE BT RK Bank deposits 26 56,254 300,000
RITETFRRE Cash and cash equivalents 26 453,387 890,545
2,901,783 3,607,034
REEE Current liabilities
JETBR X Trade creditors 28 272,010 385,629
HAbER R R ERTE R Other creditors and accrued charges 28 136,355 261,283
2lize Deposits received 29 662,023 379,462
RIERE A BIFRIE Advance from holding company 30 567 567
RIS B A R FRIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 19 184,866 323,330
JER T & Tax payables 31 26,428 61,490
AR—FRERZER Borrowings — due within one year 32 97,500 200,000
1,379,749 1,611,761
REBEETFE Net current assets 1,522,034 1,995,273
HBRRBAEERNEAEE Total assets less current liabilities 4,975,800 4,751,053
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Balance Sheet (continued)

2008 2007
st AR®T T AREEFTT
Notes Rmb’000 Rmb’000

BARHE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
A& A Share capital 33 1,376,806 1,376,806
i Reserves 34 3,505,670 3,346,827
EREE TOTAL EQUITY 4,882,476 4,723,633

FRBAE Non-current liabilities

RYERE A RIZRIE Advance from holding company 30 60,540 =
HR—FREEZER Borrowings-due after one year 32 32,784 27,420
93,324 27,420

4,975,800 4,751,053
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-ZTT ) \F+-A=1+—HILFE

For the Year Ended 31st December, 2008

REDRRAREALER
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
EERS K&
BrRE  OEE  RBRE  EERRE 2%
RA  RAEE Statutory Statutory Investment ~ RERA RRER
Share Share  capital  surplus Other revaluation  Retained @5 Minority s
capital  premium reserve reserve  reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
ARBTT ARETT ARMTR ARBTT ARETT ARMTR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Rmb'000  Rmb'000  Rmb'000  Rmb'000  Rmb'000  Rmb'000  Rmb'000  Rmb'000  Rmb'000  Rmb'000
RZFEtE-F-A At Tst January, 2007 1,274451 1,089,089 709850 493,639 - 16,101 1248337 4,831,467 947,931 5719,3%8
TEERT Profit for the year - - - - - - 1527979 1527979 256,595 1,784,574
REFHELRE Transfer to profit or loss on
sale of available-for-sale
investments - - - - - [16,101) - (16101)  (5,100) (21,210
s £y Issue of share capital 102,355 914,623 - - - - - 1,016,978 - 1,016,978
RAEEER Share issue expense - B4 - - - - - (B4 - 34
g% Transfers - - - 37,975 - - (37975) - - -
RE Dividends - = = = = - (13913)  (123913) - (123913)
RZFELE At 31st December, 2007
+ZA=1+-H 1,376,806 1,980,2% 709,850 531,614 - - 2614428 7212993 1199417 8412410
KERET Profit for the year - - - - - - 1041837 1041837 241878 1283715
WENBAR BB Purchase of adition
I interest in subsidiaries from
minority shareholders - - - - 6,539 - - 6,539 (9,460) (2,921)
&% Transfers - - - 28413 - - (8413) - - -
HBART S &R Reserve released upon
de-registration of subsidiaries - - - (2,844) - - 2,844 = 10 10
RE Dividends - - - - - - (125289)  (125,289) - (125289)
RZZENE At 31st December, 2008
TZA=1-H 1376806 1,980,295 709850 557,183 6,539 - 3505407 8136080 1431845 9,567,925
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

RIBPBERGNE - BB &N DEBRIEFAT

(1) TEEE
(2) REUVEEBHRAEE
@) REREREHA/EE K

(4) IREEBBZIBE
REFPEREERARARNMBRBAZIARE
2 ARRREWE ARG RERNRRE ST
FRRR 2 FEHRRK - RE10% R BRG] -
AR@ERIZEZEBHBATEEERA -

EEBRNEE BIRRERN /) - BHMRE
ZIARFEMEARZ50%K - AINEBRR o
RIBHBERBDE - AE B RTES AT IATRHE
B BRAARFBZEEIBRER - EARALZ
EEBRLNBEERRELRR  ZHRARERTE

RZEBIEINEMER25% °

BARRER RAKE E?-E:L BAR([MERHE
REDEREEIBLEERR  EARAKILEE
FEENAFEERZRITTREREARNEE
EARBRREEEME BN EZEAMN o

HAb AU IE I E A
mat ARAMEFER

Al BIIR 2 fe st 2 Wi

In accordance with the PRC Company Law, the profit after taxation

is applied in the following order:

(1)  making up of losses;

(2) allocation to statutory surplus reserve;

(3) allocation to discretionary surplus reserve; and

(4) payment of dividends in respect of ordinary shares.

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the relevant Articles
of Association, the Company and its subsidiaries are required to
appropriate amounts equal to 10% of their profit after taxation as
determined in accordance with the PRC accounting standards to

each of the statutory surplus reserve.

Statutory surplus reserve is part of shareholders’ equity and when
its balance reaches an amount equal to 50% of the Company’s
registered capital, further appropriation needs not be made.
According to the PRC Company Law, statutory surplus reserve
may be used to make up past losses, to increase production and
business operations or to increase capital by means of conversion.
However when funds from statutory surplus reserve are converted
to capital, the funds remaining in such reserve shall amount to not

less than 25% of the registered capital.

The statutory capital reserve represents the surplus arising from the
difference between the fair value of the net assets of the principal
business undertakings transferred from Harbin Electric Corporation
("HE") to the Group and the nominal value of the State shares

issued to HE by the Company when the Company was formed.

Other reserve represents the discount on acquisition arising from
the acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries from minority

shareholders, which was credited to the other reserve.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

B (3) K (4)78 B A E 2 2 B fIl AR R
HEEEENEARALEMBARNKLERER
NERFEETE  WRRBHRRGHE

iR ABEERMEBEERBATES KA
AR REMBARHTEEKERE

REFERIR—AARAENABGEBEFD
FRzXt AIPEFREZGEAREBETIEE
SRR E @ RBABIEB B L BES 285
HHFEE S MEUREEAE N-Z
ENFF+ZA=+—BHARB ZAIHEHEAIER
BEBLEEX 2 G EREE 2 BT
B ARM421,571,000c(Z 2T LF : AR
291,141,0007T) ° A _EX it - JAE AE S INA]
R E R R REE T AR -

The amount of appropriation in respect of items (3) and (4) above
for any year shall be recommended by the directors in accordance
with the operational conditions and development requirements of
the Company and its subsidiaries and shall be submitted to the

shareholders in general meeting for approval.

No dividends shall be paid by the Company and its subsidiaries
before they have made up their losses and made allocations to the

statutory surplus reserve.

Pursuant to a document issued by the Ministry of Finance in August
1995 in respect of profit appropriations, the amount available for
distribution to shareholders is the lesser of the amount determined
in accordance with the PRC accounting standards and the amount
determined in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. At 31st December, 2008, the amount
available for distribution to shareholders was Rmb421,571,000
(2007: Rmb291,141,000) representing the retained profits of the
Company prepared under accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong. As also mentioned above, the balance of statutory
surplus reserve can also be distributed to shareholders in certain

situations.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HE_ZZN\F+-_A=+—HILEFE
For The Year Ended 31st December, 2008

2008 2007
AR¥ET T AREEFTT
Rmb’000 Rmb’'000
R Cash flows from operating activities
R 5 A g A Profit before taxation 1,573,247 2,115,820
FE - Adjustments for:
RIBARAEE Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 265,511 262,962
GFEREERE Allowance for inventories 52,519 92,613
TEfT T S 5 Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 9,710 11,760
I 8 Amortisation of patents 17,160 71,195
A& B A Dividend income (2,737) (794)
VI - HWERERETE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 436,996 372,479
WEYFEITE Depreciation of investment properties 16,222 21,906
s Finance costs 195,325 154,858
B B RFSHE E IR E W a Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments - (39,136)
BBV - WE (Gain)/Loss on disposal of property,
BAC eI i plant and equipment (3,117) 614
REYEBERER Impairment loss recognized in respect of
investment properties - 2,520
FRERERER Impairment loss recognized in respect of patents - 8,403
Yz - BRE REEREER Impairment loss recognized in respect of property,
plant and equipment 1,772 46,886
A EHA Interest income (237,545) (229,852)
SRITERAE AR BERE Loss on fair value change of foreign currency
forward contracts 3,133 -
Y% - B MR e Property, plant and equipment written off 19,803 14,715
=R A Patent written off 4,613 =
REAR M B Reversal of allowance for bad and doubtful debts - (10,943)
S EN =N Reversal of impairment loss of property,

SR AR (B 2 [0 B plant and equipment (6,482) (570)
GFEREERDE Reversal of allowance for inventories - (35,709)
AN il Share of results of associates (23,320) (37,449)

EESSBHIZ Operating profit before
KREEBRERE working capital changes 2,322,810 2,822,278
FEGEMm), R (Increase)/Decrease in inventories (2,826,448) 1,279,498
FEU AR FRIE AN Increase in trade debtors (3,620,639) (2,679,592)
FEURE= 5 (32 00) R (Increase)/Decrease in bills receivable (152,614) 108,145
HitnElas - ek (Increase)/Decrease in other debtors,
TERTEIE (G M), R deposits and prepayments (1,389,315) 720,994
EEAREWRTCRAD, (1) Decrease/(Increase) in amounts due from
customers for contract work 2,586,612 (91,329)
JE B 4 N B R IE (18 n) R (Increase)/Decrease in amounts due from
associates (2,829) 77,796
FEU R KB A ) Decrease/(Increase) in amounts due from
KB A/ (350) fellow subsidiaries 974 (12,586)
BEAREMRORD), B0 (Decrease)/Increase in amounts due to
customers for contract work (1,259) 71,128
FERTBEFRIZ AN Rl A) Increase/(Decrease) in trade creditors 2,447,719 (1,272,352)
H bR (Decrease)/Increase in other creditors and
EstERCEL), /3 accrued charges (607,971) 1,286,947
B iR e L N Increase in deposits received 4,912,109 1,215,806
JFE - A% 3R SR B R Decrease in amounts due to shareholders - (1,071)
EARIEEIGI=NG Bl Increase in amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 26,643 10,474
FERIGET & (Decrease)/Increase in value added tax and
H i ERFIECR D) other taxes payable (656,524) 274,530




Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)

MERERER @

2008 2007
AR¥T T ARETTT
Rmb’000 Rmb'000
REEBMELECHSFE Cash generated from operations 3,039,268 3,810,666
ERRE Dividends paid (125,289) (123,913)
EFrSHR Income tax paid (361,375) (126,631)
REEBREECEHSTFHE Net cash generated from operating activities 2,552,604 3,560,122
REEK Cash flows from investing activities
B ERFHEHIREMER Proceeds from disposal of
available-for-sale investments 1,000 20,799
ER1TE BT SR Decrease in bank deposits (2,139,921) (358,791)
FLEWA Interest received 237,545 229,852
HEWE - BE RBEER Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment 66,291 21,263
B U & A RIAR B Dividend received from associates 3,714 =
BB IR AR R Dividend received from available-for-sale
investments 2,737 794
B IR ER1TIF RIE 00 Increase in pledged bank deposits (314,571) (129,184)
BEREYE Purchases of investment properties - (8,956)
BEMZE  WEKXE Purchases of property, plant and equipment (1,275,178) (649,649)
BERMNTHES Additions to prepaid lease payments - (9,617)
BB =R Purchases of patents (9,794) (132,174)
BRHSRITEROGEM),SH D (Increase)/Decrease in restricted bank deposits (7,938) 5,370
WEEH B R B DR 2 Purchases of additional interests in subsidiaries (2,921) =
REXKFAZREFE Net cash used in investing activities (3,439,036) (1,010,293)
AEEL Cash flows from financing activities
FIBRITER New bank loans raised 733,226 1,298,322
BITIRAFTE R Proceeds from issue of shares - 993,561
I E M E R Other loans raised 27,300 23,634
RIERZ A B FIRIE N Advance from holding company 73,532 (254,493)
ERBTER Repayment of bank loans (1,180,059) (895,234)
ERHE Interest paid (195,325) (154,858)
EEEMER Repayment of other loans (1,118) (36,481)
BEEK () EEX2BEEBHE Net cash (used in)/from financing activities (542,444) 974,451
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)

2008 2007
ARET R ARBT T
Rmb’000 Rmb'000
REeRBESEEWORL) B Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
cash equivalents (1,428,876) 3,524,280
FHRERBEESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year 8,681,542 5,157,262
EXEsURSEEUNTE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (30,990) -
FRAESRESZEEY Cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the year 7,221,676 8,681,542
ReRESEENEFEZIM Analysis of cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the year
RITEELRRS Bank balances and cash 6,827,252 8,331,542
HR1TTE BATF K Bank deposits 394,424 350,000

7,221,676 8,681,542
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE_ZZTN\F+_A=T—RHILFE
For the year ended 31st December, 2008
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GENERAL

The Company is established as a joint stock limited company
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), and its H shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Its
holding company is Harbin Electric Corporation (“HE"), a state-
owned enterprise incorporated in the PRC. The address of
the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the company information of the
annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), which is the functional currency of the
Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and the
activities of its principal subsidiaries and associates are set out
in notes 44 and 20, respectively.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time,
the followings new standards, amendments and interpretations
(“new HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), which are effective for the
Group'’s financial year beginning on 1st January, 2008.

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reclassification of Financial Assets
(Amendments)
HK(IFRIC) — INT 11 HKFRS 2: Group and
Treasury Share Transactions

HK(IFRIC) = INT 12 Service Concession Arrangements

HK(IFRIC) — INT 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding

Requirements and their Interaction

The adoption of these new HKFRSs had no material effect on
how the results and the financial position for the current or
prior accounting periods have been prepared and presented.
Accordingly, no prior year adjustment has been required.

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
standards, amendments or interpretations that have been
issued but are not yet effective.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs'

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements?

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs?

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements?®

HKAS 32 and 1
(Amendments)

Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation?
HKAS 39 (Amendment) Eligible Hedged Items?®

HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27
(Amendments)

Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,
Joint Controlled Entity or Associate?

HKFRS 2 (Amendments) Vesting Conditions and Cancellations?

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations®

HKFRS 8
HK(IFRIC) - Int 13

Operating Segments?

Customer Loyalty Programmes*

HK(ICRIC) - Int 15 Agreements for the Construction of
Real Estate?

HK(ICRIC) — Int 16 Hedges of Net Investment in
a Foreign Operation®

HK(ICRIC) - Int 17 Distribution of Non-cash Assets to

Owners?®

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2009 except for the amendments to HKFRS 5, effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1st July 2009

Z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2009

9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July,
2009

= Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July,
2008

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st October,
2008
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

The adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the accounting
for business combination for which the acquisition date is
on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period
beginning on or after 1st July, 2009. HKAS 27 (Revised) will
affect the accounting treatment for changes in a parent’s

ownership interest in a subsidiary.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the other new or revised standards, amendments or
interpretations will have no material impact on the results and

the financial position of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values, as explained in

the accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“"HKFRS") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including special
purpose entities) controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries).
Control is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to

obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of the subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated income statement
from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective

date of disposal, as appropriate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All'intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses

are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group's
equity therein. Minority interests consist of the amount
of those interests at the date of the original business
combination and the minority’'s share of changes in equity
since the date of the combination. Losses applicable to
the minority in excess of the minority's interest in the
subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests of the
Group except to the extent that the minority has a binding
obligation and is able to make an additional investment to

cover the losses.

Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the
purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange,
of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to
the business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the
conditions for recognition under HKFRS 3. Business
Combinations are recognised at recognised at their fair
values at the acquisition date, except for non-current assets
(or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held Sale
and Discontinued Operations, which are recognised and

measured at fair value less costs to sell.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and
initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the
business combination over the Group's interest in the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment, the Group's
interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost
of the business combination, the excess is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially
measured at the minority’'s proportion of the net fair value of

the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is not a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint

venture.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in associates are carried in the consolidated
balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes
in the Group’s share of the profit or loss and of changes in
equity of the associate, less any identified impairment loss.
When the Group's share of losses of an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's
net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. An additional share
of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive

obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Interests in associates (continued)

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the associate recognised at the date of
acquisition is recognised as goodwill. The goodwill is included
within the carrying amount of the investment and is assessed

for impairment as part of the investment.

Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group's

interest in the relevant associate.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course of

business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and

title has passed.

Revenue from construction contracts are recognized on the
percentage of completion basis, as further explained in the

accounting policy for “Construction contracts” below.

Revenue from sales of properties is recognized when the risks
and rewards of properties are transferred to the purchasers,
which is when the construction of relevant properties has
been completed and the properties have been delivered to the
purchasers and collectibility of related receivables is reasonably

assured.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Rental income is recognized on a straight-line basis over the
terms of the relevant lease.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the

shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than construction-in-
progress are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment losses.

Construction-in-progress represents properties under
construction and equipment purchases prior to installation
and is stated at cost, including borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for borrowing
costs, less any recognised impairment loss. Construction in
progress is classified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment other than construction-in-
progress over their estimated useful lives and after taking into
account of their estimated residual value, using the straight-

line method, on the following bases:

Buildings 3.23% - 6.47%
6.47% — 13.86%
10.78% — 19.40%
16.17% - 19.40%

Plant and machinery
Furniture, fixtures and equipment

Motor vehicles

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is included in the consolidated income

statement in the year in which the item is derecognised.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. Such
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciations and
accumulated impairment losses. Any gains or losses on the
retirement or disposal of investment properties are recognised
in the income statement in the year of the retirement or
disposal. Such properties are depreciated on the straight-line

basis over the lease term.

Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid land lease payments are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses. The
prepaid land lease payments are amortised on the straight-line

basis over the unexpired period of the rights.




B 7% 3R 3% B & F (@)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

FEEBRBE(H)
BESE

IRZES R AR A SE (R - JBAR
BETBEAWEEEEABRABRERAK
Ko BRETEEERERABERELENS
RIRAME A TR BRAR L BIHEE - &F
THEENIREERAFTELTPRE -

IRZERRMGER TSR S - &
RIXAREZEREARER -

R A RIEFHRK A B A RB AW
A EREFHER A ERAEMER -

T R 2 T2 2 ) DA R0 ARl AR RE R S
BRHEENR  MRBARKEFEHNT
RFIAZT - MEENFBHRBZ TIRE
FAINAR RS AR AS FER B 1R - RIZERDATE
NEFENITRFIAZT - EAMIIERFF
1RE - BRZKAEREERBRAGRA
BT - BETIR  MEFRMZRK
HERNEERBRANEURA L EBE
WK 2R

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Construction contracts

Where the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by
reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity
at the balance sheet date, as measured by the proportion that
contract costs incurred for work performed to date bear to the
estimated total contract costs for the contract. Variations in
contract work, claims and incentive payments are included to

the extent that they have been agreed with the customer.

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the
extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be
recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the

period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an

expense immediately.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits
less recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus
is shown as an amount due from customers for contract
work. For contracts where progress billings exceed contract
costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised
losses, the surplus is shown as an amount due to customers
for contract work. Amounts received before the related work
is performed are included in the balance sheet, as a liability,
as advances received. Amounts billed for work performed but
not yet paid by the customer are included in the balance sheet

under trade and other receivables.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over

the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Rental payable under operating leases are charged to the
consolidated income statement on a straight line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable
as an incentive as an incentive to enter into an operating lease
are recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease

term on a straight line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of

exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.

At each balance sheet date, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are

not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are

recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Rmb) at the rate of exchange prevailing at
the balance sheet date, and their income and expenses are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in
which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised as a separate component of equity (the translation
reserve). Such exchange differences are recognised in profit or

loss in the period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part
of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the

borrowing costs capitalised.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the

period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised as income over the periods
necessary to match them with the related costs. Grants related
to expense items are recognised in the same period as those
expenses are charged in the consolidated income statement

and are reported separately as “other income”.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Retirement benefit costs

Retirement benefit costs charged to the consolidated income
statement represent the amount payable under a defined

contribution arrangement with the local government.

Income taxes

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the
income statement because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years, and it
further excludes income statement items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted

by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using
the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the

accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will

not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income taxes (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available

to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss,
except when it relates to items charged or credited directly
to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in

equity.

Intangible assets
(i) Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite
useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. Alternatively, intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent

accumulated impairment losses.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and are recognized in the consolidated income statement

when the asset is derecognized.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an

expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development expenditure is recognised only if it is
anticipated that the development costs incurred on a
clearly-defined project will be recovered through future
commercial activity. The resultant asset is amortised on
a straight-line basis over its useful life, and carried at
cost less subsequent accumulated amortisation and any

accumulated impairment losses.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets
the recognition criteria. Where no internally-generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the

same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
identified and recognised separately from goodwill where
they satisfy the definition of an intangible asset and their
fair values can be measured reliably. The cost of such

intangible assets is their fair value at the acquisition date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

(continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses,
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. Alternatively, intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent

accumulated impairment losses.

Impairment

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment
annually by comparing their carrying amounts with their
recoverable amounts, irrespective of whether there is any
indication that they may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount do the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is

recognised as an expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of impairment loss is recognised as

income immediately.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an asset may

be impaired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost

method.

Properties held for development for sale in the ordinary course
of business are stated at cost less any identified impairment
loss. Cost includes the cost of construction, financing and
other direct costs attributable to the development of such
properties. No depreciation is provided on properties under

development.

Properties under development

Properties under development are investments in freehold
land, leasehold land and buildings on which construction
work and development have not been completed. Properties
under development comprise prepayments for leasehold land
and land use rights that are measured at amortised cost less
accumulated impairment losses, and a component in respect of
the building that is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Cost comprises construction costs and amounts
capitalised in respect of amortisation of leasehold land
prepayments and borrowing costs incurred in the acquisition
of qualifying assets during the construction. On completion,
the properties are reclassified to investment properties,
property, plant and equipment or completed properties held
for sale at the then carrying amount. The prepayments for
leasehold land and land use rights in relation to the property,
plant and equipment are reclassified to leasehold land and
land use rights and are accounted for as operating leases. Any
difference between the fair value of the investment property
and its carrying amount at the date of reclassification is
recognised in the consolidated income statement. Properties
under development are classified as non-current assets unless
the construction period of the relevant property development
project is expected to be completed within the normal

operating cycle and are intended for sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are initially measured at the
carrying amount of the property at the date of reclassification
from properties under development. Subsequently, the prepaid
leasehold land component is measured at amortised cost
less accumulated impairment losses; the building component
is carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary

course of business less selling expenses.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
balance sheet when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets
and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised immediately in the consolidated income

statement.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by

regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees on points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the

financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for

debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. At each balance sheet date subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade and
other debtors, loans receivable, pledged bank deposits and
bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on

financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-

maturity investments.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair
value. Changes in fair value are recognised in equity, until
the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in equity is removed from equity and recognised in
profit or loss (see accounting policy in respect of impairment

loss on financial assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked
to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
instruments, they are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at each balance sheet date subsequent
to initial recognition (see accounting policy in respect of

impairment loss on financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at
each balance sheet date. Financial assets are impaired where
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets

have been affected.
For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its

cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;

or

o default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period and observable changes in national or local economic

conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’'s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial assets. Such impairment loss will

not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and other receivables and loans receivable,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When
a trade or other receivable is considered uncollectible, it
is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to

profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment

not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss is

recognised directly in equity.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a

financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. The Group's financial liabilities are generally classified

into other financial liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where

appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including bank and other borrowings,
trade creditors, other creditors and accrued charges, amount
due to holding company and advance from holding company
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the

effective interest rate method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at each balance sheet date. The
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately
unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging
instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in

profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and the cumulative gain or loss that had been

recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

For financial liabilities, they are removed from the Group's
balance sheet (i.e. when the obligation specified in the
relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires). The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid or payable is

recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle that obligation. Provisions are
measured at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date, and

are discounted to present value where the effect is material.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the process of applying the Group’'s accounting policies,
management makes various estimates based on past
experiences, expectations of the future and other information.
The key sources of estimation uncertainty that may
significantly affect the amounts recognised in the consolidated

financial statements are disclosed below:

Estimated impairment on loans and receivables (including
amounts due from fellow subsidiaries, trade and other
debtors)

Management regularly reviews the recoverability and aging
of loans and trade receivables. Appropriate impairment for
estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in profit
and loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is

impaired.

In determining whether impairment for bad and doubtful debts
is required, the Group takes into consideration the aging status
and likelihood of collection. Specific allowance is only made for
receivables that are unlikely to be collected and is recognised
on the difference between the estimated future cash flow
expected to receive discounted using the original effective

interest rate and its carrying value.
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G AR EZEERE(E) 4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
c (continued)

FERERE Allowance for inventories

BB [BEIZ A B IR FE N FERE TR Management reviews the net realisable values and aging of
BETSRE  BEFEHERRNMGEAT inventories and makes allowance for obsolete and slow moving
BE(BNRAET s EER AT HEKA) ¥ inventory items identified with reference to existing market
HONTT T TRYE o TR T EER environment, the sales performance in previous years and
HIEEER - e EH i a e - estimated market value, i.e. the estimated selling price, less

estimated costs of selling. A specific allowance for inventories
is made if the estimated market value of the inventories is

lower than its carrying value.

EEEBWA 5. TURNOVER

FREBENAEAEESESETIIARE Turnover represents the amounts received and receivable for
RAERREERE 22 W R EKRSEEINGE goods sold and services rendered by the Group to outside
BFRNMEERZFRE 50T : customers during the year, net of value added tax (“VAT") and

sales returns, and is analysed as follows:

2008 2007

ARBTR AREFT

Rmb’000 Rmb'000

EmiHE Sales of goods 22,976,686 22,047,750
EiES RUA Revenue from construction contracts 6,302,931 5,052,361
HEmERA Sales of properties 46,443 220,306
HEWA Rental income 35,848 24,479
BR7& 1R LU A Services rendered 541,636 303,688

29,903,544 27,648,584
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BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

Business segments

The Group operates in five major segments as follows-main

thermal power equipment, main hydro power equipment,

engineering services for power stations, ancillary equipment

for power stations and AC/DC motors and others.

Principal activities are as follows:

Main thermal power

equipment

Main hydro power

equipment

Engineering services

Ancillary equipment

AC/DC motors and

others

manufacture of main

thermal power equipment

manufacture of main

hydro power equipment

providing engineering services for

power stations

manufacture of ancillary equipment

for power stations

manufacture of AC/DC motor

and others
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6. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued)

RN BB D IEBIRIT ¢ Segment information about these businesses is presented
below:
—EENF 2008
KE KE B EuEH
TH# TH# IR REE
B &t % B REM
Main Main Engineering  Ancillary E#KEf
thermal hydro services equipment AC/DC g
power power for power for power motors ik &
equipment equipment stations stations and others Eliminations Consolidated
ARBTT AR¥TR ARETT ARETRT AR®Tn AR®Tn ARET:R
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
E3-£3.10N REVENUE
FEEBHA External sales 20,493,133 2,863,250 3,446,168 1,161,006 1,939,987 - 29,903,544
FEEBWA Inter-segment sales 1,201,875 = = - - (1,201,875) =
I ON Total revenue 21,695,008 2,863,250 3,446,168 1,161,006 1,939,987 (1,201,875) 29,903,544
D EBERSHE R AIRITMIHERETER © Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.
AHEERE SEGMENT RESULTS 3,042,982 658,649  (346,162) 299,577 352,034 - 4,007,080
Ree BB Unallocated corporate expenses (2,258,695)
BB Finance costs (195,325)
i A=YNG bl Share of results of associates 23,320
ERTERA Loss on fair value change of foreign
AMEBERE currency forward contracts (3,133)
BBt AR A Profit before taxation 1,573,247
A Income tax expense (289,532)
REFRN Profit for the year 1,283,715
ﬁE‘ ASSETS
PEEE Segment assets 26,896,743 2,551,123 5,414,333  1,438544 2,866,305 39,167,048
r%’RTU & Interests in associates 150,536
*@Eﬁﬁﬁ, aHaE Unallocated corporate assets 9,649,041
AftBEE Consolidated total assets 48,966,625
fff LIABILITIES
APEHaE Segment liabilities 26,613,834 2,694,706 2,838,118 1,137,670 2,100,603 35,384,931
ReEpBeIaE Unallocated corporate liahilities 4,013,769
AHEaE Consolidated total liabilities 39,398,700
ﬁﬂﬂﬁ*“l OTHER INFORMATION
ARt Capital additions 1,184,707 176,905 12,303 26,213 71,718 - 147,846
mx - BER Depreciation of property,
RENE plant and equipment 325,893 48,965 9,844 12,992 39,302 - 436,99
RENENE Depreciation of
investment properties - - - - 16,222 - 16,222
S| E Amortisation of patents 14,206 262 - 691 2,001 = 17,160
B EEE Amortisation of prepaid
lease payments 7,252 1,559 | 324 534 - 9,710
REMRER Allowances for bad and
doubtful debts 183,383 32,442 (388) 10,610 39,464 - 265,511
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

6. EBFHESE(E) . 6. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued)
SRR 2007
B
KBEH  OKEIE  THIR REE
B # TR B RER
Main Main Engineering  Ancillary E#REf
thermal hydro services  equipment AC/DC
power power for power  for power motors  EbHEH =i

equipment  equipment stations stations  and others  Eliminations Consolidated
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARKTE ARETRT ARETR ARETE
Rmb'000  Rmb'000  Rmb’'000  Rmb'000  Rmb'000  Rmb'000  Rmb'000

FEERUWA REVENUE

SNERIA External sales 20,463,511 2,172,504 2,090,704 1,124,500 1,797,365 - 27,648,584
DEUA Inter-segment sales 1,223,875 - - = 5,098  (1,228,973) =
BIRA Total revenue 21,687,386 2,172,504 2,090,704 1,124,500 1,802,463 (1,228,973) 27,648,584

D EBERHE RIAIRITMIHEBRETER © Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.

AHEERE SEGMENT RESULTS 3,417,779 305,648 44892 317,754 241,638 - 432711
RegHRETER Unallocated corporate expenses (2,094,482 )
P Finance costs (154,858)
i NG bl Share of results of associates 37,449
BRBATAR] Profit before taxation 2,115,820
HE Income tax expense (331,246
KERRF Profit for the year 1,784,674
BE ASSETS
PHEE Segment assets 20,811,910 1,969,860 4,706,676 1,077,262 2,774,206 31,339,914
N AUNIPL 5 Interests in associates 128,101
ReENRETEE Unallocated corporate assets 10,622,475
AftEEE Consolidated total assets 42,090,490
af LIABILITIES
AEHaE Segment liabilities 19,691,571 2,085,136 1,864,180 1,043,768 1,832,941 26,517,596
ReENBRIERE Unallocated corporate liabilities 7,160,484
aEEE Consolidated total liabilities 33,678,080
Hi g OTHER INFORMATION
BRESH Capital additions 462,111 33412 37,326 26276 241,271 - 800,39
% BER Depreciation of property,
REE plant and equipment 181,466 49,558 16,967 7528 116,960 - 372479

RENENE Depreciation of investment

properties 4,391 777 - 231 16,507 - 21,906
27| EE Amortisation of patents 64,504 102 = 3,656 2,933 = 71,195
BT AEE Amortisation of prepaid

lease payments 8,840 1,655 6 402 857 - 11,760
AERER Allowances for bad and

doubtful debts 233,605 2,266 = 16,150 11,941 = 262,962
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ERFESER(E)
HE D&

REBZ TEEBWATZRARTEAR
HAMBE(THREDEAR - REES BT

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued)
Geographical segments

The Group's operations are located mainly in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC"). The following table provides
an analysis of the Group's sales by geographical market,
irrespective of the origin of the goods/services:

2008 2007

AREFT AREFIT

Rmb’000 Rmb’000

% PRC 27,088,569 25,491,509
TN Overseas 2,814,975 2,157,075
FEV N Total revenue 29,903,544 27,648,584

AEEZEZEEMNBEMRFREEA o R
—EEN\FF+_A=+-—"BR=-_ZTTLF
+ZA=+—8  fRBINEEFNEED
REEBEEMBEENI0% °

The majority of the Group's assets and liabilities are located in
the PRC. The assets and liabilities situated overseas account
for less than 10% of the Group's assets and liabilities as at
31st December, 2008 and 2007.
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R 301 DN 7. OTHER INCOME
HE SR ABIENT ¢ Included in other income are the following:
2008 2007
ARET T ARET T
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
f& B A Dividend income 2,737 794
REFIHEHRE = Gain on disposal of available-for-sales investments - 39,136
BEME  BEMKEEHEKE Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 3,117 =
XA e B Government subsidy 80,658 18,336
TR & B 2 Interest income from financial institutions
TR A BHA 237,545 229,852
RERLSHE F Profit from sale of scrap materials 23,279 17,178
R BR A (o] Reversal of allowance for bad and doubtful debts - 10,943
5 &8 PR (B A [ Reversal of allowance for inventories - 35,709
Yz~ B REERE Reversal of impairment loss recognized
e ] in respect of property, plant and equipment 6,482 570
At Other income 37,442 2,524
st Total 391,260 355,042
AR5 8. FINANCE COSTS
2008 2007
AR¥ET T ARBT T
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
BB Interest on borrowings:
— BN AEFREEEER — wholly repayable within five years 126,657 93,109
—BERAFAEHER - not wholly repayable within five years 68,668 61,998
195,325 155,107
W ERREAZEH Less: Interest capitalised in construction
RIS H in progress - (249)
195,325 154,858
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Pila 9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
2008 2007
AR¥ET T ARBT T
Rmb’000 Rmb'000
RS PRC enterprise income tax
—ARFE — current year 351,325 418,545
—BAFERBRFE — overprovision in prior years (15,061) (194)
336,264 418,351
REREFFR(HIFE18) Deferred tax (note 18) (46,732) (87,105)
289,532 331,246

RZZZNF+—AZ+—H  XAFER
AREHEMERL— - RER-_ZFTLF
= AT RBERMBHOPBEEEMETOE - A2
AR _ZENF—H - HRB=FA%15%
MEBENE « ARAN _TELFRRX
15% BN B EMEH -

AEBRE LB AR BRTKRAIZI5%
ZIRRB TS BASN - L7 B KR &yt
BRRIAREERTG N ILBE26% (=F
TLF : 33%)HANTBEIEEMEH -

On 21st November, 2008, the Company was named as
one of the High and New Technical Enterprise (= ##xfiiie
%). According to the PRC Law on Enterprise Income Tax
promulgated on 16th March, 2007, the Company is entitled
to a concessionary rate of income tax at 15% over 3 years,
beginning on 1st January, 2008. The Company was subject to
15% PRC corporate income tax in 2007.

Except for certain subsidiaries which are subject to an
enterprise income tax rate of 15%, other subsidiaries located
in Mainland China are subject to the PRC corporate income tax
at a rate of 256% (2007: 33%) on its assessable profits.
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BIE (&) 9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)
AFERIE S AR S Bk A F 2 ¥ 88 The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit
R before taxation per the consolidated income statement as
follows:
2008 2007
AR¥T T ARETTT
Rmb’000 Rmb'000
BR At A& A1 Profit before taxation 1,573,247 2,115,820
AEEIZ15%NTRTE Tax charge at the enterprise income
tax rate of 15% 235,987 317,373
FE(GHE & A Rl 2 R R Tax effect of share of results of associates
B2 (3,498) (5,617)
AEE B A RIZFT5%i25% Additional enterprise income tax in respect of
Friginz e SFEH the income tax rate of 25% for certain subsidiaries 5,987 7,490
T EARFERH SRR Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose
PERTBA B B H 7 E (59,654) (8,812)
TEFT E R JE SR T & FE R Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose
T‘J?Dr%w;ﬁﬁ%%ﬂ’]%; 41,998 75,693
EA—XPEMNBEA Effect of tax exemptions granted to a PRC subsidiary
i3 %Ri‘%%ﬁ?ﬁ.g (4,747) (28,684)
VAR E oK & HERR Y Temporary difference previously not recognised
B ERHNBNZE - (27,122)
RER IR E S Tax effect of tax losses not recognized 88,520 1,119
BAEFE 2 BERF Overprovision in respect of prior years (15,061) (194)
ANEERIEZ Tax charge for the year 289,532 331,246
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10. FFEEiHF]

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

MNREBRERNGF Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging:
2008 2007
AREBTRT AREFT
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
ALK (BIEESEFESER  Staff costs including directors’ and supervisors'

SN (BTEE11) emoluments (note 11) 1,172,098 875,268
RNEFETE Retirement benefit scheme contributions 39,014 216,744
ATHERAR Total staff costs 1,211,112 1,092,012
RIFERAEME Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 265,511 262,962
GFEUEAEE Allowance for inventories 52,519 92,613
S FI R 5 Amortisation of patents 17,160 71,195
TR A5 4 th FE B Release of prepaid lease payments 9,710 11,760
Bt E Auditors’ remuneration 2,500 2,500
GFERA Cost of inventory sold 19,642,081 17,633,572
S EYETE Depreciation for investment properties 16,222 21,906
M~ BB MEEITE Depreciation for property, plant and equipment 436,996 372,479
HEME - BERZEEBE Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 614
SRITAETAEAREBERE Loss on fair value change of foreign currency

forward contracts 3,133 -
BRERERER Impairment loss recognized in respect of patents - 8,403
KA EEHERBERER Impairment loss recoginized in respect of

investment properties - 2,520
Y BB MR EER Impairment loss recognized in respect of property,

plant and equipment 1,772 46,886
b 5 F K Net foreign exchange loss 138,656 104,286
= e Patent written off 4,613 =
Y% - S I R Property, plant and equipment written off 19,803 14,715
MEFREZEER Research and development expenses 472,192 463,893




11.

Bt 75 R R M RE (a0
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EFREEMNSE
—ZENF

TR BIFIR T 16547 & =M 85 =B A 8 F
BB -

* * *

ERE AR BB

*

BE

Mr.Gong ~ Mr.Qu Mr. Duan Mr. Shang

Jing-kun Da-zhuang  Hong-Yi
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000

11.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ EMOLUMENTS

2008

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 15 directors

and supervisors were as follows:

* ** #* ** #* ** *EE ¥ *EE e *hE

2fE M IHE BER EAR TEE  BEE B Blx ERE RE 200853
Mr. Wu Mr.  Ms.Li Mr.Zhou Mr.Jia Ms.Ding Mr.Lang Mr. Mr.Gao  Ms.Lu Mr. Total

Zhong-fu Wei-zhang Jiang Kui ~ He-jun Dao-jiong Cheng-bing  Xue-mei En-gi  YangXu Xu-guang Chun-lian  Chen Si 2008
Rmb'000 Rmb’000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb’000 Rmb'000 Rmb’000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb’000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000

Be Fees - - R
EfiEE  Other emoluments
THER Salaries and

EffEFE  other bensfits - 554 - 490 406 - - - - - - 148 131 199 - 198
RIRETIETE] Contrbutons to retirement

benefits schemes - 13 - 13 13 - - - - - - 13 13 13 - 8

HHEE  Total emoluments - 567 - 503 419 - - - - - - 161 14 m - 2008
=assieas 2007

ERZ  BAE  RME  BPRE REE M WE BER ERR TR HRE BE  BEX EEE B2 200783t

Mr.Gong ~ Mr.Qu Mr.Duan Mr.Shang ~ Mr. Wu Mr. Ms.Li  Mr.Zhou  Mr.Jia Ms.Ding Mr. Lang Mr. Mr.Gao  Ms.Lu Mr. Total

Jingkun Dazhuang  Hong-Yi Zhongfu Weizhang JiangKui ~ Hejun Dao-jiong Cheng-bing ~ Xue-mei Eng YangXu Xu-guang Chunfian  ChenSi 2007

Rmb'000  Rmb000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000  Rmb'000

He Fees - - -
AfEE  Other emoluments
T&8 Salaries and

AfpRHE  other benefits - 451 - 43 406 - - - - - 43 113 % 176 - 2106
R{RERIZHE Contributions to retirement
benefits schemes - n - 1 1 - - - - - 1 1 1 1 - 7
EMEE  Total emoluments - 462 - 443 47 - - - - - 443 124 107 187 - 08
*

* EEHRTES
 RENBTENTES
L

EMFREEANEEFHEBAREI1008
JG °©

REZBELFR-_TENF  AEERUR
SHEZEANALTHRARB 2 ESHE
= HM2dRmE -

Being executive directors of the Group
Being independent non-executive directors of the Group
*** Being supervisors of the Group

* %

None of the directors received more than Rmb 1,000,000 for

any of these two years.

The five highest paid individuals in the Group in 2007 and 2008
were directors and supervisors of the Company and details of

their emoluments are set out above.
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;258 12. DIVIDENDS
2008 2007
Rmb’000 Rmb'000
KEPEN—ZEZLFREFHK  Payment of 2007 final dividend of Rmb0.091
AREE0.091T(ZFZ/RNF © (2006: Rmb0.090) per share
AR#0.0907T) 125,289 123,913

EEgRIAFBRRERSARK0.075
T(ZETAF : AR¥O0.0917T) »© Lt
BEFFERRASHAE -

BizRF

BRAMNDERERAFERENARE
1,041,837,000 T (Z T £ F : AR
& 1,5627,979,000 7T ) K& & F i # F 15
2 & 3 1,376,806,000 ( = T & + F
1,359,981,0000% )5t 5 °

EEENERATHE L BEFE - WEZE
—EENFF A=+ —HERZETLF
TZA=+—BIEMEFELHREZSRE
FIRIEHEE

13.

The final dividend for 2008 of Rmb0.075 (2007: Rmb0.091)
per share has been proposed by the board of directors of the
Company and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the earnings per share is based on the
profit for the year of approximately Rmb1,041,837,000 (2007:
Rmb1,527,979,000) and on the weighted average number of
shares of 1,376,806,000 (2007: 1,359,981,000).

No diluting events existed as the Company did not have any
potential shares for the two years or at each of the balance
sheet dates. Accordingly, diluted earnings per share amounts
for the two years ended 31st December, 2008 and 2007 have
not been disclosed.
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14. Y% - RERRE :  14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AEE THE GROUP
B
BERE HERRHE
RH#EE  Furniture, BEHIR KREIR
EERE Plant and fixtures  and Motor Construction- @t
Buildings  machinery  equipment vehicles in-progress Total

ARBTR ARETT AR®TR AREBTR ARETT AR®TR
Rmb'000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000

KA coST

R-ZZ+&—F—H At 1st January, 2007 1,295,725 2,832,144 282,386 73,666 533596 5,017,517

EFNE Reclassification - (69,902) = 69,902 = -

RE Additions 6,430 78,548 22,167 84,852 457,652 649,649

Eh Transfers 20,408 148,681 27,202 9,664 (205,955) -

i Written off (1,509) (72,817) (14,626) - - (88,952)
RE Disposals (8,780) (44,390) (24,941) (4,009) = (82,120)
R-ZZ)\&—F—H At 1st January, 2008 1,312,274 2,872,264 292,188 234,075 785,293 5,496,094

RE Additions 17,130 186,722 61,047 18263 1,178900 1,462,052

Eh Transfers 113,923 383,353 24,386 6,631 (528,293 ) -

i Written off - (51,660) (9,461) (5,617) (15,851) (82,589
RE Disposals (24,387) (57,756) (56,418) (3,093) = (141,654)

R=BENE+=A=+-H At 31st December, 2008 1,418,940 3,332,923 311,742 250,249 1,420,049 6,733,903

R E DEPRECIATION

R-ZZ+&—F—H At 1st January, 2007 487,186 1,677,302 152,140 39,103 - 2355731

BFNE Reclassification - (53,962) = 53,962 = -

KEERE Charge for the year 44,470 274,739 31,628 21,642 - 372,479

WE%ERE Impairment - - - 36,586 10,300 46,886

AR Reversal of impairment - (537) (33) - - (570)
i Written off (168) (60,399) (13,670) - - (74,237)
RERNEH Eliminated on disposals (2,096) (42,168) (12,511) (3,468) - (60,243)
R-ZZ\&—F—H At 1st January, 2008 529,392 1,794,975 157,554 147,825 10,300 2,640,046

KEERE Charge for the year 89,377 290,974 35,296 21,349 - 436,996

WE%ERE Impairment - 663 - 1,109 - 1,772

EEER R Reversal of impairment (161) (407) (79) (3) (5,832) (6,482)
i Written off - (49,959) (7,792) (5,035) - (62,786)
EEREH Eliminated on disposals (19,976) (26,093) (27,228) (5,183) - (78,480)
R=ZEN\F+=-A=t-AH At 31st December, 2008 598,632 2,010,153 157,751 160,062 4,468 2,931,066

BEFE NET BOOK VALUE

R=ZEN\F+=-A=t-AH At 31st December, 2008 820,308 1,322,770 153,991 90,187 1415581 3,802,837

RZEZ+F+-A=1—H At 31st December, 2007 782,882 1,077,289 134,634 86,250 774993 2,856,048
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

AN T THE COMPANY
LR
BERE HERRE
RH#2  Furniture, BEHTE HEIR
EEEZ Plant and fixtures and Motor Construction- “@st
Buildings  machinery  equipment vehicles in-progress Total
ARETR AR¥Tn AR¥TRT AR%Tn AR¥TR AR¥T:R
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
BA coST
RZZZ+F—A—H At 1st January, 2007 199,927 97,651 27,539 5,248 71,702 402,067
AE Additions 16,576 - 10,985 1,338 56,843 85,742
RE Disposals - (10,671) - - - (10,671)
N=ZZ\F—F—H At 1st January, 2008 216,503 86,980 38,524 6,586 128,545 477,138
NE Additions 9 = 370 595 618,207 619,181
E Transfer 6,147 9,885 2,113 - (18,145) -
kil Written off - S - - (1,536) (1,536)
RE Disposals (15,869) (86,981) (17.125) (480) - (120,455)
R-EENE+-A=1—-H At 31st December, 2008 206,790 9,884 23,882 6,701 727,071 974,328
25HE DEPRECIATION
RZEEt5-A—A At 1st January, 2007 22,097 22,618 10,624 3,348 = 58,687
AEERE Charge for the year 5,908 8450 12,845 454 - 27,657
REMEH Eliminated on disposals - (7,747) = = = (7.747)
R=ZEEN\F—A—H At 1st January, 2008 28,005 23,321 23,469 3,802 = 78,597
REERE Charge for the year 23,410 2,821 2,136 665 - 29,032
R E R Eliminated on disposals (15,922) (23,688) (20,892) (381) - (60,883)
R-BENE+=A=1-H At 31st December, 2008 35,493 2,454 4,713 4,086 = 46,746
EEFE NET BOOK VALUE
RZZENF+ZA=1-H At 31st December, 2008 171,297 7,430 19,169 2,615 727,071 927,582
R=ZEEtF+-A=+—H At 31st December, 2007 188,498 63,659 15,055 2,784 128545 398,541
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15. BEME : 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
HEE : THE GROUP
ARET T
Rmb'000
2% COST
R=ZEZ+F—H—H At 1st January, 2007 333,584
= Additions 8,956
R-ZENF—-HA—HBK At 1st January, 2008 and
—EENF+=HA=+—H 31st December, 2008 342,540
2T EREE DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT
R=ZEZ+F—H—H At 1st January, 2007 30,509
RNEFHAE Charge for the year 21,906
BERE Impairment loss 2,520
RZZZN\F—-—H—H At 1st January, 2008 54,935
REE A Charge for the year 16,222
R=BENE+=HA=+—8 At 31st December, 2008 71,157
BREFE CARRYING AMOUNT
R=BENF+Z=H=+—8H At 31st December, 2008 271,383
R_ZFE+F+=-_A=+—8H At 31st December, 2007 287,605
EFERRAREREYMR I REFERT The directors consider that the carrying amounts approximate
REMBAREE - their fair value.
AR & W 51 DA % Yt B B AR 8 o The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-

line basis at rate of 5%.
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BREWE(E) 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
LA B EMENREFERE The carrying amount of investment properties shown above
: comprises:
2008 2007
AR®ET T AREEFTT
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
EFRERE : Land in the PRC:
FRERFRAY Medium-term lease 252,236 267,306
RGHATA A Short-term lease 19,147 20,299
271,383 287,605
B twiEE 16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS
REE THE GROUP
AREFTT
Rmb’000
2% COST
R_ZTZ+F—HF—H At 1st January, 2007 478,652
NE Additions 9,617
R-ZEENF—-HA—HR At 1st January, 2008 and
—EE\F+=-A=+—H 31st December, 2008 488,269
E-Sg: § ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION
R_ZTZ+F—H—H At 1st January, 2007 106,651
VN og i 3 Amortise for the year 11,760
R-_ZEENF—HF—H At 1st January, 2008 118,411
IR F S Amortise for the year 9,710
R-ZBENF+-A=1+—H At 31st December, 2008 128,121
BREFE NET BOOK VALUE
R-ZBENF+=-A=+—H At 31st December, 2008 360,148
R_ZFE+F+=-A=+—H At 31st December, 2007 369,858
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16. TEfTLTMBEE) : 16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS (continued)
AEBENENLHEESPEARLMBEE The Group's prepaid lease payments represent medium-term
P L35 FAE o TN LA SRIBREE land use rights in the PRC. They are analysed for reporting
AREoMuT : purpose as follows:

2008 2007
AR¥T T ARET T
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
mENE D Current portion 9,710 11,760
JERBE Non-current portion 350,438 358,098
360,148 369,858
ARATF : THE COMPANY
ARBT T
Rmb’'000
%N COST
R-ZE+F—HF—H At 1st January, 2007 37,716
NE Additions 1,093
—EEN\F-A—-HK At 1st January, 2008 and
—B2EN\E+=HA=+—8H 31st December, 2008 38,809
e ] ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION
RZZZ+F—F—H At 1st January, 2007 1,753
NG i Amortise for the year 754
RZZZNF—-—H—H At 1st January, 2008 2,507
INEE E S Amortise for the year 755
—EEN\F+=-A=+—H At 31st December, 2008 3,262
BREFE NET BOOK VALUE
R-EBEENFE+=-A=+—H At 31st December, 2008 35,547

R-EZE+FE+_A=+—H At 31st December, 2007 36,302
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16. HEfFLHEE(E)

AARNBRNLHEERTEARLINERE
AR iR - BN L EERIEREE

16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS (continued)

The Company’s prepaid lease payments represent medium-
term land use rights in the PRC. They are analysed for

AEESMAT : reporting purpose as follows:
2008 2007
AR¥T ARBT T
Rmb’000 Rmb'000
mEnE o Current portion 754 754
ERENEL Non-current portion 34,793 35,548
35,547 36,302
17. HFHE 17. PATENTS
REE THE GROUP
ARBT T
Rmb’000
2% COST
RZZEZTt+F—HA—H At 1st January, 2007 92,647
NE Additions 132,174
R=ZZEZENF—H—H At 1st January, 2008 224,821
NE Additions 9,794
ki Written off (16,315)
—E2EN\F+=A=+—H At 31st December, 2008 218,300
e R E AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT
R=ZZZ+F—HF—H At 1st January, 2007 19,021
IR E S Amortise for the year 71,195
A% Impairment loss 8,403
RZZEZENF—H—H At 1st January, 2008 98,619
PN gL 3 Amortise for the year 17,160
i 5 Written off (11,702)
—EENFE+=ZA=+—H 31st December, 2008 104,077
BREFE CARRYING AMOUNT
R=ZBENF+=ZA=+—H At 31st December, 2008 114,223
RZZEZ+F+=-_A=+—H At 31st December, 2007 126,202
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

HREE) 17.
ZENRBHED R ERABaRZEER
F o

ZEENNERARRAIZN0FL BIZER
REAE AR A

BEBALE - 18
FREERTHBHRET -

PATENTS (continued)

The amortisation expense has been included in “administrative

expenses” in the consolidated income statement.

The above patents have definite useful lives and are amortised

on a straight-line basis over 3 to 10 years.

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

The following are the major deferred tax balances recognised

and movements thereon during the current and prior years:

PEWIR K -
HitEKR R
FEZBEERE
Impairment
of trade
and other
debtors, and BHER Hh &t
inventories Provisions Others Total
ARETT ARETT ARETRT AR%ETR
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000
T LFEERAEEX  Credit during the 2007 and at
ERRZZEZN\F—H—H 1st January, 2008 62,251 18,854 6,000 87,105
HIGEEER Credit to consolidated
income statement 43,843 2,524 365 46,732
R-ZZZENF+-H=+—H At31st December, 2008 106,094 21,378 6,365 133,837
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19. RMBATZHER :  19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
AAT THE COMPANY
2008 2007
ARET T AREF T
Rmb’000 Rmb’'000
B Investment, at cost
FEIEEFTHEB AR Unlisted in the PRC 2,413,428 2,262,001
JE BT /&8 A B 5RIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 1,347,351 996,022
AR EENGIE S Amounts due to subsidiaries (184,866) (323,330)
3,575,913 2,934,693
hEHEpEER R e s WEERETER The amounts due are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are
H o repayable on demand.
B AR ZFAE R R AMI LS - Details of subsidiaries are set out in note 44 to the financial
: statements.
20. REEATZH#ER . 20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
AEM PN
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2008 2007 2008 2007

ARBTR ARBTET AR®TR ARETI
Rmb’000  Rmb’000 Rmb’000  Rmb’'000

FR B3 _E T A A Cost of investment in associates

REKAR unlisted in the PRC 95,555 87,873 25,422 17,740
FEAG B A8 Ui s Share of post-acquisition profits,

OB B AR )12 ) net of dividend received 53,342 41,418 34,662 24,071
JiE Wi BSe & R B FROR Amounts due from associates 1,639 377 - =
R L A NGIE L] Amounts due to associates - (1,567) - -

150,536 128,101 60,084 41,811
EFEEEIR RS WREARTER The amounts due are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are

HA o repayable on demand.
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20. MREFEAT 2R (E) © 20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
R-ZENF+-A=+—H FEEHLE As at 31st December, 2008, the Group had interests in the
RNAElZFBWT - following associates:

HAEZLE
Proportion of
ARRMER/ nominal value
Rals NG of issued
AFER Place/ BRIRA capital/l  BERRE
Form of Country of FTELEH REEH registered  Proportion
ICES: business  incorporation/  Principal place Class of capital held  of voting FELETH
Name of entity structure registration of operation ~ Share held by the Group  power held Principal activity
BRER-RBERE RU PEARENE  AEARLAE LRk 41% % BRER  TREERSEE
(REE)EREMAA Established PRC PRC Ordinary Rt R BIEEER

Provision of maintenance,
installation and on-site
services to owners of
turbines, boilers and
electricity generators

HESEEKEANLE R PEARENE  AEARLAE LiER 50% 50% HEZHEE
BREEAR Established PRC PRC Ordinary Manufacture of electrical
equipments
BRERBEARIRERAR RU PEARENE  AEARLAE LRk 27.28% 21.28% RAREEREESRERS
Established PRC PRC Ordinary Provision of quality control
services for boilers
manufacturing
RRENRERARERAT RU PEARENE  AEARLAE LRk 44.56% 4456% EERHEEBRRAH
Established PRC PRC Ordinary Manufacture & sale of
minteral beverages
ENEVIET- Tt R REARENE  AEARHEAE EBR 43.69% 4369% REBNRER
HEBRAR Established PRC PRC Ordinary Development of power
equipment technology
RBETREMAEERAR RYL REARLNE  REARLNE EBR 43.69% 4369% YRR
Established PRC PRC Ordinary Provision of petrol station
services
REBNAERERAK RU REARENE  PEARLAE Lk 43.69% 4369% BERBHEKIRE
G UEE YN Established PRC PRC Ordinary Development of new

technology on power
machine tools

RRERESEKERE RU REARENE  REARLAE LRk 41.72% HN.72% KNEE
BREFLNA Established PRC PRC Ordinary Hydropower generation
RREERS N IRERAF R REARENE  HEARHEAE EER 33.50% 3350% EHIE
Established PRC PRC Ordinary Provision of power
engineering
r B AR R RU PEARENE  AEARLAE LR 30% 30% iR

Established PRC PRC Ordinary Provision of traveling services
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. MREEATZER(E) 20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

REBZHME N ZHMEERHRENT The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's
: associates is set out below:

2008 2007

ARETT AREEFTT

Rmb’000 Rmb’000

BEE Total assets 741,288 600,731

FN=Lr= Total liabilities (392,263) (306,037)

FEE Net assets 349,025 294,694
SEQREERE QA Group's share of net assets of

AEMGDE associates 148,897 129,290

PN Revenue 545,762 513,922

IR g Profit for the year 61,563 80,225

AELB R A LB E N A Group's share of results of

FEER A 42 7 associates for the year 23,320 37,449
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21. TFESHEMRE :  21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
FFIHE MR E RARRK Available-for-sale investments comprise:
EE LN
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2008 2007 2008 2007

AR®TR ARBTIT AR¥TR ARBTET
Rmb’000  Rmb’000 Rmb’000  Rmb’000

R ETEHRE Unlisted equity securities

—RERARERE in the PRC, at cost

B less impairment 27,074 28,074 17,879 17,879
ELEMBEHREREERFBEKZAIE LT The unlisted equity investments represented investments
DNEBITHRER S - EEEEEAEBR in unlisted equity securities issued by private entities
B - YRR ABREEEENFEGRE - incorporated in the PRC. They are measured at cost less
AABSEGMENEERRNUEREE A impairment at each balance sheet date because the range of
HESRABLEBENRAABERESE reasonable fair value estimates is so wide that the directors of
HER o the Company are of the opinion that their fair values cannot be

measured reliably.

22. B& . 22. INVENTORIES
rEE b N/NG|
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2008 2007 2008 2007

ARBTR  ARBTE AR®TRT ARETT
Rmb'000 = Rmb'000  Rmb’000  Rmb'000

JRAF#L Raw materials 5,035414 3,410,013 2,046 2,167
pe Work in progress 6,974,897 5,744,762 433,119 163,068
UK Finished goods 507,717 663,877 - 8,297
FRHE 2 BHERZERA  Properties under development for sale 315,605 218,485 - =
ANEE v EHIERZER  Completed properties held for sale 107,585 130,152 - =

12,941,218 10,167,289 435,165 173,532
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FEW AR SR FEW SRR H b Wk 1%

ERFEFHRIE

RTEPZEERSTIHER - —RIZEHE
PZBBERMGE » £ T ARE R EEK IR

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

23. TRADE DEBTORS/BILLS RECEIVABLE/OTHER DEBTORS,

The credit terms given to the customers vary and are generally

based on the financial strengths of individual customers. In

FHEBZEERR AEBTEHIEEFE order to effectively manage the credit risks associated with
A o trade debtors, credit evaluations of customers are performed
periodically.

2008 2007

ARET R ARBT T

Rmb’000 Rmb’000

FEUER TR Trade debtors 13,428,014 9,819,274

B ORE R Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (1,073,788) (824,709)

12,354,226 8,994,565

FEUT = 1R Bills receivables 361,324 208,710
H A FEUGR Other debtors,

e RIEFHIE deposits and prepayments 6,537,067 5,339,159

19,252,617 14,542,434

REEE B EFHRREERNRUSRR 2 Rk

The following is an aged analysis of trade debtors net of

AT - allowance for doubtful debts at the balance sheet date:
2008 2007
ARETR ARBT T
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
1R Within 1 year 8,554,404 6,000,510
15522F 1 to 2 years 2,391,479 2,083,009
2F E3F 2 to 3 years 1,119,172 860,094
3FLE Over 3 years 289,171 50,952
12,354,226 8,994,565
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23. FEWBRE: FEMGEHR HMFEWE “#& : 23. TRADE DEBTORS/BILLS RECEIVABLE/OTHER DEBTORS,
S RFEFRIEE) : DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)

FEWBRFOR ER OB N T

Movement in allowance for doubtful debts of trade debtors:

2008 2007

AR¥T T ARET T

Rmb’000 Rmb’000

FHEEH Balance at beginning of the year 824,709 564,282
FEW AR FOR B BB TER Impairment losses recognized on receivables 260,978 262,962
(A 454 WA [E] 1 4l 55 Y <& RE Amounts written off as uncollectible (11,899) (2,535)
FREER Balance at end of the year 1,073,788 824,709

—ERLFEF AT -BM=ZTTNF
T A=+— B S EEWRERSANE b UK
MR EBERINEENREEE -

The fair value of the Group's trade debtors and other debtors
at 31st December, 2008 and 2007 approximates to the
corresponding carrying amount.

24, BESFIREK (FEH)RK . 24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT
: WORK
REE
THE GROUP
2008 2007
ARETT AREEFIT
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
REEANEESR - Contracts in progress at the balance sheet date:
e N D'¥iN Contract costs incurred 9,489,378 10,087,702
FE (R R FIFNBR A 7B R & 18 Recognised profits less recognized losses (40,957) 25,425
9,448,421 10,113,127
B B R TIREEKIE  Less: Progress billings (9,159,498) (7,238,851)
288,923 2,874,276
Hr Represented by:
BiEE RN Amounts due from customers included in
current assets 1,045,979 3,632,591
BEEE RIENR Amounts due to customers included in
current liabilities (757,056) (758,315)
288,923 2,874,276

HE-_ZZ+F+_-_A=+—HNM=_ZZN
F+-—A=1+—Hit TERNEHEES

RIER -

As at 31st December, 2008 and 2007, there were no retentions
held by customers for contract works.
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25. fEl () AZRMBAS FEAS : 25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES/
: RELATED COMPANIES

rEE : THE GROUP

I FIE AR - AT B - BEE T ERE
Re —EZN\F+_A=+—HN_ZTZt
F+ - A=+ HOAABERONEESN

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are
repayable on demand. The fair value of the amounts at 31st

December, 2008 and 2007 approximates to the corresponding

FREE -

carrying amount.

26. SHITHENK  RENRLZEY . 26. BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AEE PN
THE GROUP THE COMPANY

2008 2007 2008 2007

ARBTRT AREBTT AR®TR ARET

Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000

RITEFRR® Cash and bank balances 6,827,252 8,331,542 453,387 890,545
31 A AR ER A Time deposits, matured

TFEHFR within 3 months 394,424 350,000 - -

7,221,676 38,681,542 453,387 890,545
31E A LAE B HARY Bank deposits, matured

TEHATE X over 3 months 3,079,921 940,000 56,254 300,000

HIER-_ZZNE+-A=1t—HILZAR
#9,671,726,000 L (=TT +F : AR
6,665,175,0007T )37 A HF 2 A R L F1 B &)
SRIT + B L A RME IR SN 15938 18 R B R
I AR INESE S ERIER ©

R-ZBENE+-A=1+—BAXNRTE
R R NEFHEAE1.10% (Z T4 ¢
3.28%) °

ExeRnEmEEROIEMNARERE-

As at 31st December, 2008, a total of Rmb9,671,726,000
(2007: Rmb6,665,175,000) were denominated in Renminbi
and deposited with banks in the PRC. The conversion of these
Renminbi denominated balances into foreign currencies is
subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control

promulgated by the PRC government.
The weighted average effective interest rates on bank deposits

as at 31st December, 2008 were 1.10 % (2007: 3.28%).

The directors consider that the carrying amounts approximate

their fair value.
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27. SMTETR

27. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

E3S
THE GROUP
2008 2007
ARBTRT ARBFIT
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
HNE IR BRI XY Foreign currency forward contracts 3,133 =

RZBEZNF+_A=+—08 ~EBFIN
ETABENZ RERPINELIREL - &
4 R4 %8 A% 165,000,000 - ZEAHFH
REBZEMAFVFLEE  WIAAERIR
ANFEFNE - ZAFEDBRIERETARE
EBBRAZTSEEERE -

HiiEHIMNE R AN T ERE: - B
AREBENEHEERAABE_TTNF
A

Ay,
TZA=+—BFENERRD -

28. MEfTERR HibRERREER

28.

At 31st December, 2008, the Group had outstanding foreign
currency forward contracts denominated in United States
dollars with total notional amount of US$65,000,000. These
contracts were subject to net settlement at various maturity
dates and are measured at fair value at the balance sheet date.
The fair values were calculated based on market values of

equivalent instruments quoted from the banks.

The above foreign currency forward contracts did not qualify
for hedging accounting, and changes in the fair values of the
foreign currency forward contracts were charged to the income

statement during the year ended 31st December, 2008.

TRADE CREDITORS/OTHER CREDITORS AND ACCRUED
CHARGES

rEH RAF]

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2008 2007 2008 2007
ARETR ARETT AR®TR ARBTR
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
FETER R Trade creditors 7,715,110 5,267,391 272,010 385,629
HEMEN R RETER Other creditors and accrued charges 2,055,636 2,757,797 136,355 261,283
9,770,746 8,025,188 408,365 646,912
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1,621,598,0007T) RRAEE A&+ & A4
B T2 64%Re B AERBAR -
mEHIHAAREEA%Z+ @A NS
FIMEEIRZS  WEARBEE B
Wiz&EegAEREER T INERE

o

—EENFT_A=T+HN=_FTLF
TZA=1+—BNAREBERONEENRE
EfEE °

28. FEFIERRR HibFEMRRRETER (&) 28. TRADE CREDITORS/OTHER CREDITORS AND ACCRUED
CHARGES (continued)
HEEAENERRZRRATAOT An aged analysis of trade creditors at the balance sheet date is
as follows:
AEE
THE GROUP

2008 2007
ARBT R ARET T
Rmb’000 Rmb'000
1A Within 1 year 7,039,443 3,522,251
1224 11to 2 years 470,791 1,298,712
2FB3F 2 to 3 years 67,951 305,767
3FLAE Over 3 years 136,925 140,661
7,715,110 5,267,391
RZZZENF+TZA=+—BKk=ZTZTLF The fair value of the Group's trade creditors, other creditors
+ZA=+—8 ' ERER - BtEETRRE and accrued charges at 31st December, 2008 and 2007

fEErERERmEAZOLTCMNAREE - approximates to the corresponding carrying amount.

29. ElifiRE 29. DEPOSITS RECEIVED
rEEH THE GROUP

EREZeAEEFENIEMBERDE R The amount represents the progress payments received
MZzEERE BlRiEeHR WBAR from customers in respect of work in progress. Included in
#5,059,506,000 (=TT £ : AR deposits received of approximately Rmb5,059,506,000 (2007:

Rmb1,621,598,000) were the progress payments received in
respect of contract works to be commenced twelve months
from the balance sheet date and were classified in the balance
sheet as non-current. The remaining balance represents
deposit received for contract works to be commenced within
one year and were classified as current liabilities. The deposits
received will be used to set-off the contract price upon the

completion of contract works.

The fair value of the amount at 31st December, 2008 and 2007

approximates to the corresponding carrying amount.
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RIEEATIFRIE

REHE

-t
RERABIRIBESRBTITEZFIE B
AR¥13,470,0000 (ZEZLF : AR
103,478,0007T) ° bt FRIE A EMEIF B 2N
HRAE—FRN - _TENE+_A=+—8H
M-_ZE+E+-A=+—HBHNR2ABEE
MR FEEMBREEE -

RA

RIZERR A B IB 4 88 B A R 306,720,000
T(ZETLF : ARM142,702,0007T) 2
FRER  BERFMNERAR6T2ZE(ZZEZ L
& 5.76[E) o SRR E E R TR
I RF G ERTEEBRGE - EEEBERXRA
BOTZEARN - TEEEREEIIE
AitwEmAaRAaE - — ST /\F+=A
=T—BNMZZETtF+A=1+—H2AnR

30. ADVANCE FROM HOLDING COMPANY

THE GROUP
Current

The balances of the advance from holding company is non-
interest-bearing, amounting to Rmb13,470,000 (2007:
Rmb103,478,000). The amount is unsecured and repayable
within one year. The fair value of the amount at 31st
December, 2008 and 2007 is approximate to the corresponding

carrying amount.

Non-current

The balance of the advance from holding company is the
interest-bearing loans amounting to Rmb306,720,000 (2007:
Rmb142,702,000) with effective interest rate of 6.72% (2007:
5.76%) per annum and have no fixed repayment term. The
amount will not be demanded for repayment in the next
twelve months of the balance sheet date and, accordingly, the
amounts have been classified as non-current liabilities. Their

fair value at 31st December, 2008 and 2007 approximates to

BEEONREER - their carrying value.
B & 31. TAX PAYABLES
rEH AT
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2008 2007 2008 2007
ARETRE ARETT AR®TR AREBTR
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
#EFR Value added tax (44,714) 535,772 (21,784) (15,110)
EREH Enterprise income tax 381,705 406,816 44,758 58,493
B Business tax (4,315) 20,311 1,414 14,517
HAth Others 42,915 94,327 2,040 3,590
ERFiE Tax payables 375,591 1,057,226 26,428 61,490
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32. &= 32. BORROWINGS
AEHE RAFE
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2008 2007 2008 2007
ARBTR ARETT AR¥TR AREBTR
Rmb’000  Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
RITIEX Bank loans 4,190,179 4,668,010 97,500 200,000
H AR Other loans 215,639 95,269 32,784 27,420
4,405,818 4,763,279 130,284 227,420
R Secured 4,089,725 4,472,810 - =
LR Unsecured 316,093 290,469 130,284 227,420
4,405,818 4,763,279 130,284 227,420
BREERBE AT : The borrowings are repayable
as follows:
—FR Within one year 870,704 753,387 97,500 200,000
—ZARF More than one year but not more
than five years 2,342,952 2,470,336 - =
AFEME Over five years 1,192,162 1,539,556 32,784 27,420
4,405,818 4,763,279 130,284 227,420
B —FEAEHIRY Less: Amounts due within one year
SEC=L classified as current liabilities ~ (870,704)  (753,387) (97,500)  (200,000)
3,535,114 4,009,892 32,784 27,420
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32. fER(E) . 32. BORROWINGS (continued)

RITERNEASBUATIER S8BT The carrying amount of the bank loans are denominated in the

following currencies:

F&E ZAYNG|
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2008 2007 2008 2007

ARBTR ARBTT AR®TR ARETE
Rmb’000 ~ Rmb’000 Rmb’000  Rmb’000

AR Rmb 3,489,982 4,251,956 130,284 227,420
E7T UsD 915,836 511,323 - =

4,405,818 4,763,279 130,284 227,420

MENMBNEEBERNEEIBNNZE All of the Group’s borrowings carrying at rates ranging from
7.47%F %% - GRFIREERMEAER - 3.51% to 7.47% at both years. The contracted interest rates
: are equal to the effective interest rates.
REZEZEN\FF+ZA=+—0 ' BREER At 31st December, 2008, none of the Group's bank borrowings
EEQR([BELEERAF ) TEHAER are guaranteed by Harbin Electric Corporation (“HE") (2007:

BIRITEAEER - (ZTBTLF : ARK Rmb200,000,000).
200,000,0007T) :

EEeRAEAMEEEANEMANAAE The directors consider that the carrying amounts of the
(e borrowings approximate their fair value.

piil
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33. B&F :  33. SHARE CAPITAL
2008 2007
ARBT T ARBT T
Rmb’000 Rmb’'000
B - EBITRAR : Registered, issued and fully paid:
BAE ARSI State owned equity interest shares of
EEAREIT Rmb1 each 701,235 701,235
HIxZIREBEARE 1T H Shares of Rmb1 each 675,571 675,571
1,376,806 1,376,806
MRANE B AT The movements in share capital are as follows:
RITRE BOTHRE
Number of Issued MR E
shares share Share Mgt
in issue capital premium Total

AREBTE ARETE AR%TR
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000

R-ZEZ+F—[—H At 1st January, 2007 1,274,451,000 1,274,451 1,089,089 2,363,540
BITHRR Issue of H shares 112,590,000 112,590 914,623 1,027,213
BITEA Share issue expenses - = (23,417) (23,417)
BIAE A REHR Conversion of state owned

equity interest shares (10,235,000) (10,235) - (10,235)

R-ZBENE—-F—-HK At 1st January, 2008 and at

—ZE2EN\FE+=-A=1+—H 31st December, 2008 1,376,806,000 1,376,806 1,980,295 3,357,101
BRASA ST BT RIA R B R BIRAME Except for the currency in which dividends are paid and
SNEERREITRSN - BAEEARFHRE restrictions as to whether the shareholders can be PRC
Efthm EHEMER o investors or foreign investors, state owned equity interest

shares and H shares rank pari passu in all respects with each
other.
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34. HEfE

AEBAEER ETFEEHENEHRREDIT
NAPERRECARZ AR ETEK -

34. RESERVES

THE GROUP

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements

therein for the current and prior years are presented in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 64 of the

financial statements.

AT THE COMPANY
TERR
N AES
RZAHE  Statutory  Statutory REEF
Share capital surplus  Retained ‘s
premium reserve reserve profits Total
ARETT AREBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTR
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000
RZZZ+F—H—H At 1st January, 2007 1,089,089 709,849 327,567 85,032 2,211,637
ARER A Profit for the year - - = 367,997 367,997
RN B Issue of share capital 914,623 - - - 914,623
RAEEER Share issue expense (23,417) = = = (23,417)
5 Transfer to reserves = = 37,975 (37,975) -
B2 Dividends - - - (123,913)  (123,913)
RZZZENF—F—H At 1st January, 2008 1,980,295 709,849 365,542 291,141 3,346,827
AEE R Profit for the year - - - 284,132 284,132
B Transfer to reserves = = 28,413 (28,413) =
BRE Dividends - - = (125,289) (125,289)
R-ZBENF+=-A=+—H At 31st December, 2008 1,980,295 709,849 393,955 421,571 3,505,670
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35. BHEAMHE 35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
2008 2007
ARBT T ARBT T
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
B AR AINBE=FH Guarantee given to banks and financial
RITR A R IR institutions in respect of general banking
facilities granted to external parties 14,119 168,890
36. FEHE 36. OPERATING LEASES
SBEREHBEA The Group as lessor

FAYEMRE WAL A AR 35,848,000
T(ZZEZLF : ARY24,479,0007T) °
NEE AR B RIS B NYEMELER
AERAGESFEREER13% o —HIAT
BANMEDEERRAREHE1E20% »

EEEAEBERA  AEBEMAEAES R

Property rental income earned during the year was
approximately Rmb35,848,000 (2007: Rmb24,479,000). The
Group’s properties held for rental purposes are expected to
generate rental yields of 13% on an ongoing basis. All of the
properties held have committed tenants ranging from 1 to 20

years.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted with

TE R RE(ER A S - tenants for the following future minimum lease receivables:
2008 2007
AR®T T ARETFT
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
—FR Within one year 39,998 40,276
—Z£RHF In the second to fifth year inclusive 143,074 147,836
hFi& After five years 128,425 254,568
311,497 442,680

At 31st December, 2008 and 2007, the Group had no

commitments under operating leases.
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BRI 37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
2008 2007
AR¥ET T AREFIT
Rmb’000 Rmb'000
BEMZE - WEKKE Capital expenditure for the acquisition of
ME AR H property, plant and equipment
—BEHERRN — contracted for but not provided in
B TRk P R the financial statements 315,838 909,275
EERE 38. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

RZZEZNFF+ZA=+—0H  A&EE#
BREFEN A ARK245,814,000L (=
T+F : AR¥267,394,0007T) 2 &HEY
¥R AREEAS4,255,000 (=T F £
F : AR#169,684,0007T) RITIFHIER
BRABTETAERETEENERR -

BAEFIETE

RE-NANANFBRENRTE - AEERRE
RERBRSN TREETHSRRERXER
REENEREEES - AEERRART
ERXTEN22%BNEREEZEES BT
REERTEMNBRMNT (iR Ll ZRE
FREORBRARBZESI BREHARA -
AEBEZRRTE XN B RAE FRAKTE
MZHEE  BRESA - SREKRETE
AEARTENREFRFE - LD HIABE
BT ERBRERXETERRAEE S NiaR
RET  E@RHE  RREARFPHEETR
BARNSRENE  YhRRBETHL SRR
EXEERINBRNET - Y HBEH
% AEEREEANRAKE FRKREN X
HEE -

39.

At 31st December, 2008, the Group had pledged investment
properties having a net book value of approximately
Rmb245,814,000 (2007: Rmb267,394,000) and bank deposits
amounting to approximately Rmb484,255,000 (2007:
Rmb169,684,000) to secure certain of Group's trading facilities.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

In accordance with regulations issued by the local government
in 1996, the Group is required to make contributions to a
defined contribution retirement fund which is administered
by the Harbin Social Insurance Administration Bureau of the
local government. The Group is required to contribute 22%
of the basic salary of its existing PRC staff, while employees
contribute 8% of their basic salary. Apart from the above, the
Group is also obliged to pay pensions and retirement benefits
during the transition period. During the transition period,
pension payments are calculated by reference to the staff's
monthly basic salaries and period of service and are paid by
the Harbin Social Insurance Administration Bureau and the
Group. After the transition period, pension payments will be
paid by the Harbin Social Insurance Administration Bureau
only by reference to the payable amount of individual saving
account and the Group has no material obligation for the
pension payments or any post-retirement benefits beyond the

annual contributions described above.
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40. FAEEALRS

(i)

(ii)

HERARNBRNEQATINRS,
g2

BENMBEEEEZS 2HE - ~5E
HFEEEERENB QA RAE
W zRBEERBEIIAARE
49,223,000 (=TT LF : AR
50,477,000t ) & A R #9,537,0007T
“TTLF : ARK9,717,0007T) °

HE_ZTTZN\FE+-_A=+—H XK
SEMNTFRESEZNERQRERERME
HEE A ARK219,369,000t(=F
T+ : AR¥309,080,0007T) °

REER  BEEERRTRMEE
R RERRRGE—REERE -

BRREBRARREZIER  H25F
MIEE30 °

MEMTFERELENRS &R

AEEBAEENRKERESTEK
FHEASEZEHNER(BEALE) B
HERMAES - S - AEEA S
Ll P ERFE R EREN—
o o BT AR EEBE A RELA L)
RENMBARRZZI  AEEbHE
HBECELEER -EFERR/M
UEELCXESEERZER ERBT
E=J7 -

FEFE S B AR SR BE A o B () B EL th R b
XpMBRET  AEREYNESHT
EhE—EEBRE -

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(i)

(ii)

Transactions/balance with holding company and

fellow subsidiaries

Pursuant to the services agreements signed with HE,
the service fees paid to and received from HE and its
subsidiaries amounted to approximately Rmb49,223,000
(2007: Rmbb50,477,000) and Rmb9,5637,000 (2007:
Rmb9,717,000) respectively.

For the year ended 31st December, 2008, the Group
made purchases from subsidiaries of HE amounting to
approximately Rmb219,369,000 (2007: Rmb309,080,000).

At the balance sheet date, credit facilities granted by
certain banks to the Company were secured by corporate

guarantee given by HE.

For details of the arrangement concerning balances with

holding company, see note 30.

Transactions/balances with other state-controlled
entities in the PRC

The Group operates in an economic environment currently
predominated by entities directly or indirectly owned
or controlled by the PRC government (“state-controlled
entities”). In addition, the Group itself is part of a larger
group of companies under HE, which is controlled by the
PRC government. Apart from the transactions with HE
and fellow subsidiaries disclosed in section (i) above, the
Group also conducts business with other state-controlled
entities. The directors consider those state-controlled
entities are independent third parties so far as the

Group's business transactions with them are concerned.

In establishing its pricing strategies and approval process
for transactions with other state-controlled entities, the
Group does not differentiate whether the counter-party is

a state-controlled entity or not.
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40. BABEANLRZ(E)

41.

HEMBACEEENR S, EHRIAT

40.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Material transactions/balances with other state-controlled
entities are as follows:

2008 2007

ARBT T AREEFIT

Rmb’000 Rmb’'000

HE Trade sales 28,097,220 26,320,560
R Trade purchases 6,266,649 3,276,512
HE B FEEMNR Amounts due to other state-controlled entities 10,105,136 17,566,734
H b B A 1 3 UG Amounts due from other state-controlled entities 7,527,381 14,960,475

AN - AEBEEE HEEBH M —LEAR
TMEREEE TRER  BRERERE
& BERMEM—RRITRE - EEFEL
RITXHGNEE L  EZQRRBFORAREK

3= o

BT LR EFER/BREMBEADLE
MZSGERAEBLEREERATE -

BEXxER

AEBEANEENERRRE  RERAKH
ERREsRNe] - BESRBRNERL
R AFHEEREE - FRERANKIRE
o

AEBRBEEBRNES - EREENE
BUELRE - BEFRBRERERE - K
SEFRSHEMRIERENRS - MR
IKEEARREITHR - BE_TTN\F+Z
A=+—BRBE_TT+F+_H="+—
HIEFER  WESHABRZR - BURSE
o

41.

In addition, the Group has entered into various transactions,
including deposits placements, borrowings and other general
banking facilities, with certain banks and financial institutions
which are state-controlled entities in its ordinary course of
business. In view of the nature of those banking transactions,
the directors are of the opinion that separate disclosure would
not be meaningful.

Except as disclosed above, the directors are of the opinion
that transactions with other state-controlled entities are not
significant to the Group's operations.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its

business and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended
31st December, 2008 and 2007.
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EXRER(E)

AEBAERABEL R CFHEBRUBER
NOFEEZM) - FEUEREANIER - A
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41. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by the total capital plus net debt. The Group's
policy is to maintain a stable gearing ratio. Net debt includes
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, bills and other
payables, accruals, less cash and cash equivalents. The gearing

ratios as at the balance sheet dates were as follows:

2008 2007

ARETT AREEFTT

Rmb’000 Rmb’'000

SRHITETR Derivative financial instrument 3,133 =
BiEARENR Amounts due to customers for contract work 757,056 758,315
FERTERRK Trade creditors 7,715,110 5,267,391
HEMENSRRETER Other creditors and accrued charges 2,055,636 2,757,797
Blize Deposits received 23,716,097 18,803,988
RERNEBRARZIE Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 50,069 23,426
PERR A B HGR Advance from holding company 320,190 246,658
JER Tt & Tax liabilities 375,591 1,057,226
&k Borrowings 4,405,818 4,763,279
B BRBIFER Less: Restricted bank deposits (14,568) (6,630)
BRI Pledged bank deposits (484,255) (169,684)

- GE Bank deposits (3,079,921) (940,000)
RITEFRES Cash and bank balances (7,221,676) (8,681,542)
SFETS Net debt 28,598,280 23,880,224
BE I Equity 8,136,080 7,212,993
BB FETRS Capital and net debt 36,734,360 31,093,217
BEXRBELE Gearing ratio 78% 77%
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42. ERMTIRMTE
REER ST ASEFINEREENT

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments as at the balance sheet date are as follows:

LSRERE Financial assets

2008 2007
AR®ET T AREFTT
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
JEUBR X Trade debtors 12,354,226 8,994,565
FEUT =1 Bills receivable 361,324 208,710
H b Uk Other debtors 489,970 675,214
EEE RIEWE Amounts due from customers for contract work 1,045,979 3,632,591
FEUR R R [ff B A mIFKIE Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries 66,353 67,327
FFHEEHRE Available-for-sale investments 27,074 28,074
R HIF K Restricted bank deposits 14,568 6,630
[REEELES /4 Pledged bank deposits 484,255 169,684
TEHTFR Bank deposits 3,079,921 940,000
RITETFRRE Cash and cash equivalents 7,221,676 8,681,542
25,145,346 23,404,337

o =L Financial liabilities
2008 2007
AR®ET T AREFTT
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
PTEEmMITA Derivative financial instruments 3,133 =
EEA RIERR Amounts due to customers for contract work 757,056 758,315
FERSTBR TR Trade creditors 7,715,110 5,267,391
EfhE SRR ETER Other creditors and accrued charges 2,055,636 2,757,797
YSEES EPNGIE S Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 50,069 23,426
RN A RIFRIE Advance from holding company 320,190 246,658
JER Tt & Tax liabilities 375,591 1,057,226
&k Borrowings 4,405,818 4,763,279
15,682,203 14,874,092
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43. MBEREZBERBUR
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES

The Group's major financial instruments including available-
for-sale investments, trade and other debtors, trade and
other creditors, borrowings and bank balances and deposits.
The risks associate with and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure approximate measures

are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties failure to perform their obligations as at
31st December, 2008 in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated balance sheet. In order to minimise
the credit risk, the management of the Group has delegated
a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
receivable at each balance sheet date to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group's

credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on bank deposit and balances is limited because
the majority of the counterparties are reputable banks or bank
with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies. The Group has no significant concentration of credit

risk, with exposure spread over a number of counterparties.

Liquidity risk

With regard to 2008 and thereafter, the liquidity of the Group
is primarily dependent on its ability to maintain adequate cash
flow from operations to meet its debt obligations as they
fall due. The Group has good standing among its bankers.
The Group continued to enjoy a strong financial position at
the end of 2008, with cash and cash equivalents amounting
to Rmb7,221,676,000 as at 31st December, 2008 (2007:
Rmb8,681,542,000).
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POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the
balance sheet date are as follows:

REEH THE GROUP
—EEN\E 2008
DPME 15228 2EZE5F 5N E
Less than 1t02 2to5 More than @gt
1 year years years 5 years Total
ARBTR AR¥TR ARETn AR%®Tn AR%Tx
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
fTESMTA Derivative financial instruments 3,133 - - - 3,133
BEEREMRR Amounts due to customers for
contract work 757,056 - - - 757,056
FETER R Trade creditors 7,039,443 470,791 67,951 136,925 7,715,110
Hib e - FERt B Other creditors and accrued
RiEtasE charges 2,055,636 - - - 2,055,636
RAZKBREFE Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 50,069 - - - 50,069
RIERRARIFIE Advance from holding company 13,470 - - 306,720 320,190
BB Tax liabilities 375,591 - - - 375,591
fER Borrowings 870,704 1,014,256 1,328,696 1,192,162 4,405,818
11,165,102 1,485,047 1,396,647 1,635,807 15,682,603
—EELF 2007
PIE 1FER2F 25EGF HELAE
Less than 1t0 2 2t05  More than FERy
1 year years years 5 years Total
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’'000
BEAREMNR Amounts due to customers for
contract work 758,315 - - - 758,315
JERTBR X Trade creditors 3,522,251 1,298,712 305,767 140,661 5,267,391
Hin R - Bt B Other creditors and accrued
REEE charges 2,757,797 - = - 2,757,797
EEL =G Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 23,426 = = = 23,426
RIZRR AR Advance from holding company 103,956 - - 142,702 246,658
BB T Tax liabilities 1,057,226 - - - 1,057,226
& Borrowings 753,387 716,092 1,754,244 1,539,556 4,763,279
8,976,358 2,014,804 2,060,011 1,822,919 14,874,092
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk relates primarily to fixed rate
bank deposits and borrowings. The Group currently does
not have an interest rate hedging policy. However, the
management monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure should the need

arises.

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk for changes in
interest rates relates primarily to the Group's interest-bearing
borrowings. As at 31st December, 2008, if interest rates on
borrowings had been 50 basis points higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, profit for the current/prior year
would have been Rmb4,579,000 and Rmb3,075,000, lower/
higher respectively, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest

expense on floating rate borrowings.

Other price risk

The Group is not exposed to any equity securities risk or

commodity price risk.

Currency risk

Certain trade receivables of the Group are denominated
in foreign currencies. The management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and hedges certain exposure using foreign
currency forward contracts. The foreign currency forward

contracts do not qualify for hedging accounting.

2008 2007
AR¥T T AREF T
Rmb’000 Rmb’000

HEtEETELSMEE Financial assets denominated in foreign currencies:
JE W R X Trade debtors 3,041,673 3,884,831
RITRERRE Bank balance and cash 629,871 1,746,815

3,671,544 5,631,646
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43. HBREREEBREREBUR(E) :  43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
: POLICIES (continued)
EXmE (%) Currency risk (continued)
2008 2007
ARET T AREFTT
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
EMEEHE 2 SRAE Financial liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies:
&5k Borrowings 915,836 511,323
2008 2007
ARETT AREEFTT
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
HEMEETHEL The financial assets were denominated in
SREEHIIMT : the following foreign currencies:
BT EUR 80,083 227,386
ETT usb 3,529,822 4,694,090
BT HKD 59,847 710,170
Efth Others 1,792 -
3,671,544 5,631,646
2008 2007
ARETT AREF T
Rmb’000 Rmb'000
HEMEMEZ S M The financial liabilities were denominated in
BEHIMAT : the following foreign currencies:

= Usb 915,836 511,323
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
balance sheet date to a reasonably possible change in the
Rmbexchange rate, with all other variables held constant,
of the Group’s net profit (due to changes in the fair value of

monetary assets and liabilities).

—EBENF 2008
2008 2007
e BRELA B Al
b2 V- BRNTE AR B
Increase/ Effect on Effect on
decrease profit profit
in foreign before before
currency rate taxation taxation
AR¥TR AREFT
Rmb’000 Rmb’'000
T EUR 5% 4,004 11,369
-5% (4,004) (11,369)
EIT usSD 5% 222,283 209,138
-5% (222,283) (209,138)
B IT HKD 5% 2,992 35,509

-5% (2,992) (35,509)
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44. TEMBATFL :  44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY
BER-—EEN\E+=-—A=+—0  AFE Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31st
R BN T ENBARGEBAT ¢ December, 2008, all of which are incorporated and operating in
: the PRC, are:
ARFEEMER
AREELH
Proportion
EMER of nominal value
HWEATRRE Registered  of registered capital TEEEH
Name of subsidiary share capital  held by the Company  Principal activities

ARETFT B i
Rmb'000  Directly Indirectly

% %
RREREREREE AR 746,853  90.94 - HERE
Manufacture of boilers
RREERBEREE AR 709,237  87.37 - EEFURBEPRENKRREDEE
Manufacture of steam turbine generator sets and
hydro turbine generator sets
RREBHIREREEAR* 136,000 100 - REURE TR
Provision of engineering services for power stations
REBE=HERABRAR 76,116 81.39 - FeREERERE Mt EENFERAER -
BRE  EMRREBCIEREERHEE
Development, production and sale of plasma-enhanced
and electrochemical surface ceramicised light alloy
materials, building aluminum templates and boards,
industrial special nature materials, electrophoresis
paints and electrolyte, relevant chemical products.
RREB AR E ZRHARAF** 27,000  55.55 44.45 25
Trading
RREEEEEREEAR 859,723  62.54 - EEBIhTWE
Manufacture of steam turbines
RRER NEHEREERETAR 10,000 = 75 FHER
Property development
lRRERBRPIROBERAR** 80,000 100 - SRR
Manufacture of valves
REESRERRTIZFHRA O 50,000 60 - S RAB R TIR(CR
BRAR* Research and development of power equipment
engineerisation technology
KB=NTEREEREEAR* 53,127 - 50 oot WFELHN  ZeexkABELERER

HRERMNTE  EFER - RAFAENRENH -
TR REBERNEE - NI REE

Development, production and sale of electrochemical surface
ceramicised light alloy materials and relevant technology;
Manufacture, processing and trading of electricity products,
relevant raw materials and accessories.
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44. TEMBATFE(E) . 44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
: COMPANY (continued)
AREEEMER
AREELH
Proportion
HMEA of nominal value
HEAREMRE Registered  of registered capital ~ FEEE
Name of subsidiary share capital  held by the Company  Principal activities

ARETT B ik
Rmb'000  Directly  Indirectly

% %
RRERERASEREEAR* 10,000 - 100 R RFAZK N B BRI
Research and development of hydropower generation
equipment engineerisation technology
REBREEXRHEREARAR* 20,000 - 90 FHERENES
Property development and property rentals
R B R AR 8,000 - 78 EETIRR
Manufacture of engineering equipment
RREREHEERRG AR 20,000 - 35 (iEnote) FMERENES
Property development and property rentals
)Vt ] NG 60,000 - 100 RinERETERE
Provision of engineering service to turbines
RERRELEESERAR 3,000 - 75 FHERS
Property rental
*  BREMFEAR @ Limited liabilities company
> RHBRAR] oa Joint stock limited enterprise
F BERBEEREAEREHETERNE Note: According to the written declaration received from certain
RAA16%FMEARAMBRREDBER shareholders who held 16% registered capital of HEER
FoHRRGEGREEER 30 Bt ! BIEE ERMD AR QA these shareholders would vote for
ANEBMAEEH — A MR RHEERE o : the same decision as the Group and therefore the Group
: could control more than half of the voting power of the
companies.
EEeRAUNERBINRT EERTELRE The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in
EXENEEZHWBAR - EFSRAHY] the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
HipHiB AT Z 5 EUBERERBBRIT or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
Ko would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.
REFLAE—FWB AT B EEAEBER None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities during

EIF o : the year.
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Disclosure of Significant Events

1.

The 2007 Annual General Meeting of the Company was held
in the meeting-room on the 17th Floor, at Block B, No. 39
Sandadongli Road, Xiangfang District , Harbin, Heilongjiang
Province, PRC, at 9:00 a.m. on 6th June, 2009 (Friday). All of
the proposed resolutions stated in the Notice of Annual General
Meeting on 11th April, 2008 were passed at the meeting.

The Company and its subsidiaries (HBC, HTC, HEC, Harbin
AC/DC Motor Limited Company and Harbin Value Company
Limited) have obtained the reassessment of being a high new-
tech enterprise. The Company and its subsidiaries will continue
to enjoy the income tax rate of 15%.

According to the requirement of “the basic specification
of corporation internal control” of the Ministry of Finance,
Securities and Futures Commission, the Audit Commission,
the China Banking Regulatory Commission and China Insurance
Regulatory Commission, the Company had implementation of
the internal control assessment project from 31st October 2008,
and employ PricewaterhouseCoopers to provide consulting
service about this project.

On 19th December, 2008, Mr. Zhang Qiuhong from our Group
was appointed as chairman of IEC/TC5 Turbine Standardization
Technical Committee by SMB of International Electrotechnical
Commission (IEC).His term of office is from 1st January, 2009
to 31st December, 2014. This is the first time for the Asian to
serve as chairman since the Committee was established.

Material Contracts Signature

On 28th January, 2008, the Company conventional island signed
a technology import agreement of nuclear power with Mitsubishi
Heavy Industries Co. Ltd.

On 31st January, 2008, the company signed a conventional
island supply contract of 2X1000MW for the project in Haiyang,
Shandong Province with China Power Investment Corporation,
and further consolidates the company's market-leading position
for AP1000 conventional island products of nuclear power.

On 23rd May, 2008, the contract for the supply of supercritical
2X660MW coal-fired thermal power project in HFZEMKK

Russia signed between the Company and XIBRE£727], which
marked our first entry in the Russian market with the three main

equipments of China's home-made supercritical coal-fired units.
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On 22nd August, 2008, the Company signed the supply and
service contracts for the main equipment with ESSAR in India
for the second stage 2X600MW expansion coal-fired thermal
power project (BTG) to SALAYA and 2X600MW sub-critical
coal-fired thermal power project to JARKHAND, and further
consolidate the Company’s market position in India for the sub-
critical unit products.

On 28th August, 2008, the Company signed the supply contracts
for the total 10 hydro generating units for 4X800MW in [AZX
# and 6X770MW in Z)&JE with China Three Gorges Project
Corporation (CTGPC), which created the Company’s record of
single-signed maximum contract amount.

On b5th September, 2008, the contract for the supply of three
main equipment of 1X1000MW ultra-supercritical unit for
Guangdong Zhujiang project signed between the Company
and Guangzhou Development Industry (Holdings) Co. Ltd. The
project is another project of set supply of three main equipment
units after the 2X1000MW project in Taizhou, Jiangsu Province.

On 26th September, 2008, the Company signed the supply
contract for the domestic first AP1000 nuclear power steam
generator for 2#unit in Sanmen with China Nuclear Power
Engineering Co. Ltd (CNPEC), which achieved a major historic
breakthrough for the Company on nuclear island main equipment
of national third generation nuclear power technology self-
reliance project.

. Scientific research and development

On 3rd December, 2008, the Company won the first prize of
national scientific and technology progress by virtue of the
scientific research project named “research and engineering
application of sets equipment of 600MW supercritical thermal
power units”.

On 3rd December, 2008, the Company won separately the
second prize of national scientific and technology progress by
virtue of two scientific research project named “300MW CFB
demonstration projects and civilization of boiler units” and
development research and application of sets technologies and
key equipments of 300,000 tons synthesis ammonia.

On 30th December, 2008, the Company won both the grand
prize of scientific and technological progress of China Machinery
Industry and Heilongjiang scientific and technological progress
by virtue of the scientific research project named “key
technologies research and equipment research of Three Gorge
huge fully air-cooled hydro-generator unit”.

Other than disclosed above, the Company did not have other
significant events, which should be disclosed in the period
review.
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REGISTRED NAME OF THE COMPANY
IRERESNRERNDBRAR

ENGLISH NAME OF THE COMPANY

Harbin Power Equipment Company Limited

REGISTERED ADDRESS OF THE COMPANY

Block 3

Nangang District High Technology Production Base

Harbin

Heilongjiang

PRC

Registration No. 2301001003796

OFFICE ADDRESS OF THE COMPANY

Block B, No. 39 Sanda Dongli Road
Xiangfang District

Harbin

Heilongjiang Province

PRC

Postcode: 150040

Tel: 86-451-82135717 or 82135727
Fax: 86-451-82135700

PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

20th Floor, Alexandra House
16-20 Chater Road

Central

Hong Kong

LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE

Gong Jing-kun

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Qu Da-zhuang
Ma Sui
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ATHE COMPANY SECRETARY

B Ma Sui

L S AUDITORS

EERHAEEFERAR © Yuehua CPA Limited

HESETAD Certified Public Accountants

BB 7/F., Allied Kajima Building

BT ETFT81385% 138 Gloucester Road

BeEsANELE Wanchai, Hong Kong

PG EESTMEEFAEREELT China Rightson Yuehua Certified Public Accountant
E Company Limited

HEE A R AR 1201 - 1205 B,

MG E Eagle Run Plaza

T ERK 265 No. 26 Xiao Yun Road

s K =BE Chaoyang District

1201 — 1205%F Beijing 100016

100016 PRC

P El LEGAL ADVISORS

e)oipred as to PRC Law

b= BB RSB Haiwen & Partners

R AR AT Room 1016, Beijing Silver Tower

= No. 2, Dongsanhuan North Road

N Chaoyang District

R =IRIEER 258 Beijing

FAIRAE1016ZE PRC

BB as to Hong Kong Law

B R Richard Butler

BB 20th Floor

=ak: Alexandra House

FEATE 16— 2057 16 — 20 Chater Road

BWRE Central

—t+& Hong Kong
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LISTING INFORMATION

H Shares
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Code: 1133

DEPOSITARY

The Bank of New York
American Depositary Receipts
22nd Floor West

110 Barclay Street

New York, NY 10286 USA

INVESTOR RELATIONS

P. O. Box 11258
Church Street Station
New York, NY 10286-1258

SHARE REGISTER AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Hong Kong Registrars Limited

Shops 1712 — 1716,17th Floor
Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wan Chai

Hong Kong

INFORMATION ON THE COMPANY

Available at Secretary Office of
the Board of Directors

Block B, No.39 Sanda Dongli Road
Xiangfang District

Harbin

PRC

SHAREHOLDERS RECEPTION TIME

On 8th, 18th, and 28th (the following day in case holiday)
From: 9:00 a.m. to 11:00 a.m. and

From: 2:00 p.m. to 4:00 p.m.

Tel: 86-451-82135717 or 82135727

Fax: 86-451-82135700
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Documents Available for Inspection

1+ AR ZZEENFEREER - : 1. The original copy of the 2008 Annual Report of the Compmay.

2 ARRAREEIZZITERRIEAR © 2. The original copy of the Company's audited financial
: statements.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

BBEERREHNRERNAERAR(ARA D)
EERZEENFANATZB(ESRR) LT
EREARKNEEEIAMBETER =KX
) NEEIVKEBEITIEGH AR - RITTZNF
ERRBFAE  AFEEN5IEE :

LEER

I BHLBERABE-SENE T A
St-BLFENERRREE -

2. BRLBARARE-_FTNF+ A
St ALFENERERES -

3. BELHAEAA-FEN\F-A-AE"F
B\F 1A=+ — B EREE IR K
B -
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T—RERRGTEHERRL -
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of
Harbin Power Equipment Company Limited (the “Company”) for
the year of 2008 will be held at 17th Floor Meeting Room, Block
B, 39 Sandadongli Road, Xiangfang District, Harbin, Heilongjiang
Province, the People's Republic of China on Friday, 12th June, 2009

at 9:00 a.m. for the following purposes:

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To consider and approve the report of directors of the Company
for the year ended 31st December, 2008.

2. To consider and approve the report of supervisory committee of
the Company for the year ended 31st December, 2008.

3. To consider and approve the audited accounts and auditor’s
report of the Company for the period from 1st January, 2008 to
31st December, 2008.

4. To declare the 2008 dividend of Rmb0.075 per share (appropriate

tax included).

5. To appoint Mr. Zou Lei as executive director of the Company.
His tour of duty will expire until the term of the Board of

Directors end (Note 5).

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS

6. To authorize the Board of Directors of the Company to appoint
any person to fill in a casual vacancy in the Board of Directors
or as an additional director, his term of office shall expire at the
conclusion of the next following annual general meeting of the
Company.

7. To authorize the Board of Directors of the Company to
determine the appointment of auditors and authorize the Board

of Directors of the Company to fix their remuneration.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting (continued)

8. ATHERTEMPZHMARE LM - EEE 8. In order to ensure flexibility as issue any shares, the Board
ERESREN—MRERE  BEQARES recommends that shareholders of the general authorization of
A HRIELE - BITANEERENBERE BITR the Board of Directors can be authorized to allot, issue and deal
DHEEE20% BN ETHR R WA (M3 with no more than the total amount of issued shares listed on
6) ° overseas stock markets 20% of Domestic Shares and H shares

E (Note 6).

9. RIEARZEZTSRTELBIBBEEITRG 9. To authorize the Board of Directors of the Company to

BEE10% FIHAR © determine to repurchase H shares not more than 10% of total

issued share.

AEEEW By order of the Board

REHE Ma Sui
BB Company Secretary
PEMEE  —EEAFNA=TEA © Harbin, China, 24th April, 2009
2 Bl AL . Registered office of the Company:
REE AR AT : Block 3, Nanggang High Technology
RETE  BEAEM : Production Base

A i [R S B A E B i = SR8 Harbin, Heilongjiang Province
: People’'s Republic of China

REJRRAFAHIE - Office Address of the Company:
REE AR AFE Block B, No 39 Sandadongli Road, Xiangfang District
BREI4A BRAEM : Harbin, Heilongjiang Province

EE = KE) 11353957 B & People’s Republic of China
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Notes:

1.

For the purpose of determining the list of shareholders entitled to
attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting and the receive
of the proposed dividend of the year of 2008 to be declared at
that meeting, the Company shall temporarily suspend changes to
the register of shareholders from 12th May, 2009 to 11th June,
2009 (both days inclusive). shareholders whose names appear on
the register at the time of the suspension of registration shall be
entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting and shall
be entitled to receive of the proposed dividend of the year of 2008
(if declared at that General Meeting). Person who purchased shares
of the Company during the period of suspension of registration shall
not be entitled to attend the Annual General Meeting, nor to the
dividend of the year of 2008.

Shareholders intending to attend the Annual General Meeting shall
give written notice of the same to the company, which shall be
lodge at the office address of the Company on or before 5:00 p.m.
on 22nd May, 2009.

A Shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General
Meeting is entitled to appoint one or more persons (whether or
not a shareholder of the company) as his proxy to attend and vote
instead of him.

To be valid, the form of proxy ,together with a duly notarized power
of attorney or other document of authority , if any, under which the
form is signed must be deposited at the office and communication
address of the Company not less than 24 hours before the time for
holding the Annual General Meeting.

Controlling shareholder of the Company, Harbin Electric Corporation
nominated Mr. Zou Lei-based executive director of the fifth session
Board of Directors of candidates.

Mr. Zou Lei resume: Mr. Zou, forty-two years old, graduated from
mechanical design and manufacture major of Jiamusi technical
college in Heilongjiang province in China and got baccalaureate,
then he graduated from Harbin Institute of Technology and gained
his master of business administration. Mr. Zou possesses rich
experiences in power equipment industry, he was the dispatcher,
Party office secretary, league deputy secretary, secretary in
dispatching room of production division in Harbin Boiler Works,
Party branch secretary of pipe first branch factory, factory director of
heavy vessel workshop, factory director of Pingshan branch factory,
production director, deputy general manager, Chairman of the Board,
General manager and Party committee deputy secretary in Harbin
Boiler Company Limited. Now Mr. Zou is the general manager
of the controlling shareholder of the Company — Harbin Electric
Corporation. Mr. Zou has been the company's executive director
from 11th February, 2009.
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The Board of Director suggested that shareholder gain generality
delegation so as to ensure the flexibility when issuing any shares
and give conditionally right to Board. This general delegation will
authorize the Board of Director (or directors authorized by Board)
to allocate, issue and handle as many as issued [domestic capital
share] as well as overseas listing foreign capital share’'s 20% of total
shares.

(1) Under the conditions to obey the third and fourth paragraph
below, according to PRC (China) Company Law and related
regulations of listing location (revised now and again), general
and unconditionally authorized Board to exercise all rights of
company, allocating, issuing and handling new shares during
“related period”, as well as determine items and conditions to
allocate and issue new shares, including below items:

a. Classification and amount of new shares planning to issue;

b. Fixed way and/or issued price of new shares (including price
interval);

c. Starting and ending date of issuing shares;

d. Classification and amount of new shares issued to
shareholder; and

e. Making and awarding suggestion, protocol and stock option
that maybe needed when exercising these rights.

(2) Approval stated in the first paragraph will authorize boards make
or award during “related period” suggestion, protocol and stock
option that maybe needed when exercising these rights needed
or maybe needed after ending “related period”.

(3) According to the first paragraph stated in front, Board authorizes
and approves the face value of [domestic capital new share]
and overseas listing foreign capital share allocated and issued
conditionally or unconditionally should not exceed 20% of
[domestic capital share] and overseas listing foreign capital share
issued already.

(4) When exercising rights according the first paragraph, the Board
should: (a) obey China Company Law, related regulations of
listing location (revised now and again), and (b) gain the approval
of China Securities Regulatory Commission and other related
Chinese government branch.
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(5) Concerning this resolution:

(7

“related period” means the interval from the date passing this
resolution until the earlier date of three listing below:

a. Twelve months after passing this resolution;

b. At the end of next annual conference of stockholders; as
well as

c. The authorized date shareholders pass special resolution
recalling and revising this resolution.

Under the conditions of related Chinese government and
according to China Company Law, authorized board exercising
rights according the first paragraph will increase company's
registration capital to necessary amount.

Authorized board signs necessary document, deals essential
procedure, adopts other necessary action for completing
allocation, issue and listing new shares on the basis of obeying
related law, administrative regulation, controlling regulations of
the listing location.

Under the conditions of related Chinese government, authorized
board will make proper and essential revision to related contents
of Company Regulation according to the way, category, amount
of company new share allocation and issue as well as practical
status of company stock right structure after completing new
share allocation and issue, so as to reflect changes generated
by company capital stock structure, register capital due to this
authorization.



@

EEEBNDRBERABERL A
Harbin Power Equipment Company Limited




	Cover
	Contents
	Overview of the Company
	Financial Highlights
	Chairman’s Statement
	Management Discussion and Analysis
	Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
	Report of the Directors
	Report of the Supervisory Committee
	Corporate Governance Report
	Independent Auditors’ Report
	Consolidated Income Statement
	Consolidated Balance Sheet
	Balance Sheet
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
	Notes to the Financial Statements
	Disclosure of Significant Events
	Information on the Company
	Documents Available for Inspection
	Notice of Annual General Meeting
	Back Cover

